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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EEH/E

Dear Shareholders:
The current Year remained a year of complexity.

In the 4th quarter of 2022, COVID-19 resurged again, leading to an
increase in overall infections and various anti-epidemic
arrangements, including shutdowns and silence measures.

Although most anti-epidemic arrangements were uplifted and cross-
border was re-opened in the 1st quarter of 2023, overall demands
are yet to recover due to factors including global economic
stagnation resulting from inflation and interest rate hikes.

At the same time, competition among the environmental protection
industries in mainland China continues to intensify, and the entire
market has shifted its focus from expansion to focusing on quality-
oriented. Therefore, the Group will continue to optimise its
management and innovation in response to the changes in the
national environmental protection market.
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To open up new growth drivers, the Group also entered the anode
material sector through establishment of a joint venture in the
current Year. Anode materials are mainly applied in power batteries,
energy storage, and multi-purpose portable electronic products. The
Group expects the anode material business will become a driving
force along with policy guidance and strong demands for power
batteries, energy storage in mainland China.

We will continue to devote and dedicate our contribution to the
Group in the coming year.

We would like to express our appreciation to all of our employees,
shareholders, and stakeholders for their trust and support.

Zhu Yongjun
Chairman of the Board
Hong Kong, 21 June 2023
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENmR D

The Group is principally engaged in (i) provision of foundation
works, civil engineering contractual service and general building
(the “Construction Business”); (ii) environmental
protection projects including kitchen waste treatment
business, development and management of environmental
protection industrial park and new energy materials in mainland

works and

related

China (the “Environmental Protection Business”).

BUSINESS REVIEW

1 Construction Business
During the Year, revenue generated from construction
segment was approximately HK$438.2 million, representing a
decrease of 3.3% from approximately HK$453.1 million for
FY2022. The decrease was mainly attributable to the decrease
of the number of sizable projects undertaken by the Group
during the Year.

The overall gross profit margin of the construction business
(FY2022:10.8%). The
decrease was mainly attributable to certain projects with
comparatively higher margin were completed during FY2022.

decreased to approximately 5.0%

Revenue from this segment is generated from both public and
private sector projects with approximately 86.4% of the
segment revenue contributed by the foundation projects in
public sectors. Out of the total segment revenue of HK$438.2
million, the key contributors were (i) a foundation project in
Wang Chiu Road contributing approximately HK$135.6 million
during the Year; and (ii) a foundation project in Mei Tung
Estate contributing approximately HK$242.8 million during the
Year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group has completed a total of 4 projects in FY2023
(FY2022: 6 projects) and secured 2 new projects (FY2022: 6
new projects) during the Year with aggregated contract value
of approximately HK$957.3 million (FY2022: approximately
HK$118.9 million). All new projects secured during the Year
had commenced construction, and 1 out of 2 new projects
was completed during the Year. As at 31 March 2023, 2
projects were in progress (FY2022: 4 projects in progress).
Details of the completed projects and the projects in progress
are set out as follows:

BB RS am M o AT

R2023 HEFE - AEEEG L TKAE
HE Q020 FE - 6fEIEE) « 7R
KNFZES2ME 1B B (20228 B F
E:6lHMEBE) AHNRLENE
957,300,000/8 7T (20228 X &F [ : 49
118,900,000% 7T) ° AT A N A F E W
SRFIBEEH I R2EMIBEE F
AR AFEEE T - H2023F3H31
HAE2EEZEEE Q028 KFE 4
EEEEE) - EXKIEE REEEE
HFFBEMT

Completed projects ZRIEH
Name of project Location Sector Main category of work
EBE&HE 2 ] ITREEHA
1 Wang Chiu Road Project Wang Chiu Road Phase 1, Foundation Construction of Bored Pile, SHP,
Kowloon Bay ELS and Pile Cap Works
ZRBEIEH FLEEE R IREH I #FLE - SHP - TR AIE X #
LA R IE1E T2 5T
2 Chong San Road Project 3W, Building 6W and Foundation Construction of SHP
Chong San Road
Bl ¥ 351 B B3 E3W R eW A 12 i F SHP#E T
3 Hung To Road Project 33 Hung To Road Foundation Construction of Bored Pile
exclude GIFW
% [E B 1E B % 8 83357 & BB (T EERS T #A)
i
4 Kai Tak development Kai Tak, Kowloon Foundation Construction of Mini-pile and
project Shear Pile
RiEEERIAR NERME b F WEE R BT
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB T

Projects in Progress ZEZIEH
Name of project Location Sector Main category of work
EHE&H 2 gl ITREEHEMN
1 Mount Parker Road 2-16 Mount Parker Road, Foundation Site Formation Works
Project North point
MELEIER it A 2R 1L 3E2-165% i F AR FEIR
#2 Mei Tung Estate Project Mei Tung Estate (Older Part), Foundation Construction of Bored Pile, Site
180 Tung Tau Tsuen Road, Formation, ELS and Pile Cap
Kowloon City Works
ERWIFAB JUBE Yk 3R SR A #E 18097 b E BB HMBTE ZEKEA
ERP(REHD) B RERIEETL
# Project newly secured by the Group during the Year. # AEBRAFEMNEMOHER -

Environmental Protection Business
The Environmental Protection Business involves:

(i) kitchen waste treatment related business;

(i)  development and management of environmental
protection industrial park; and

(i) new energy materials.

For the Year, the Group’s revenue from the Environmental
Protection Business decreased by approximately 47.0% to
approximately HK$107.0 million (FY2022: approximately
HK$201.8 million). Discussion and analysis on the business
performances are set out below.

1. Kitchen waste treatment related business
Revenue generated from kitchen waste treatment
related business comprises (i) construction revenue
from BOT projects under construction; and (ii) income
from operating plants including government subsidy
for kitchen waste treatment and sale of by-products
including but not limited to used-cooking oil, organic
fertilizers, etc. produced during the process of kitchen
waste treatment.

RRER
RREBS K

() EBEFNREERBEET:

(i) FAEFREBRERIEER: R

(i)  FHEERMEY -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

During the Year, revenue generated from kitchen waste

treatment amounted to approximately HK$107.0 million
(FY2022: approximately HK$201.8 million). Such
decrease was mainly attributable to the construction
revenue of Xuancheng Plant.

Set out below are the developments of each of the

kitchen waste plants of the Group during the Year:

(1)

Hefei Plant

Hefei Plant is 60%-owned by the Group and is
operated under the BOT model with a planned
capacity of 200 tons per day.

In June 2021, the treatment volume of Hefei Plant
dropped to around 160 tons per day since some
other kitchen waste treatment plants in south-
west and western Hefei have commenced
operation and certain kitchen wastes of Hefei city
were transferred to such plants. During the Year,
the treatment volume fluctuated, especially in the
3rd quarter where COVID-19 resurged in
mainland China. Subsequently, the treatment
volume gradually increased and excessed its
capacity of 200 tons per days in March 2023.

As disclosed in the 2022 annual report, the
Group proposed to acquire the remaining 40%
equity interests in Hefei Plant at a consideration
of RMB38.50 million (approximately HK$43.75
million) from the non-controlling shareholders
pursuant to a sale and purchase agreement dated
21 February 2022. Such acquisition was yet to
complete as at 31 March 2023 and up to the
date of this report.

Gy BEVEY
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BB R W S T

As disclosed in the 2020, 2021, and 2022 annual
reports, the non-controlling shareholder of Hefei
Plant guaranteed Hefei Plant’s revenue from the
sale of organic fertilizers until expiration of the
service concession right in 2038 (“Guaranteed
Revenue”). Such guarantee shall take place upon
the following conditions are fulfilled: (i) the
normal production capacity of Hefei Feifan
reaches 200 tons/day, and (i) the quality of the
underwritten production output meets with the
national requirements set for the relevant organic
fertilizers. Should the actual revenue from sales of
organic fertilizers fall short of the Guaranteed
Revenue in any particular year, the non-
controlling shareholder shall make up the
difference with the dividends it is entitled to
receive from Hefei Plant.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, Hefei
Feifan attempted to produce organic fertilizers but
yet to meet the relevant requirements, particularly
subsequent to the promulgation of the new
organic fertilizers requirements by the Ministry of
Agriculture and Rural Affairs of the PRC. As such,
the contracting parties entered into a settlement
agreement on 26 September 2022, pursuant to
which the non-controlling shareholder of Hefei
Plant compensated the Group RMB13.1 million,
and the Group shall release the vendor and the
creditor’'s undertaking on the Guaranteed
Revenue; as a result, the Group recognised an
other income of approximately HK$14.9 million
(RMB13.1 million) during the Year.

B 2120204 - 20214 R
2022 FIRATHEE - A1
1H BRI R IR E & A
1H B EE A #ERMKA
EITIRE  EERBER
MR 20384 JEim A& LE ([1R
BULALD) © ZARTE KR A
THREFEKREEE . ()&
EIENEBEREDGXR
200MF : R (i) P & B A& E
ENEEFAIBHEEHK
BERHEE T 8B K48 E o 4
AR R 5 [ 85 5 B AR
B EBRRA DR B
A RISERERR AR R ZB A A
EH#EMAEIEB W/
BEfEE®E-

WA 22022438318 1
FE - AREAEREE
BHER - BREREE
BMEk BRleETEE
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20235 FH AXRKEE(ER)IERAA

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Xuancheng Plant

Xuancheng Xichong Biological Technology Co.,
ld* (ERTAHAEDREER 2 F)
("Xuancheng Plant”) is a limited liability company
established in the PRC and a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group. The total planned
capacity of Xuancheng Plant is 300 tons per day
upon completion of its construction which will be
carried out in 2 phases. The service concession
agreement was entered with Xuancheng Urban
Management and Law Enforcement* & 3 /1 3
BB AHER for a period of 30 years under
BOT model in August 2021.

Phase 1 construction of Xuancheng Plant was
completed during the Year and Xuancheng Plant
subsequently applied for the commencement for
trial commercial operation, but such
commencement for trial commercial operation
was not obtained until early April 2023, and was
delayed due to, among others, the resurgence of
COVID-19 in the second-half for the Year.

During the Year the Group recorded construction
revenue of approximately RMB44.30 million
(approximately HK$50.92 million) from Xuancheng
Plant. Up to the date of this report, Xuancheng
Plant is still under its trial operation.

Dunhua Plant

The Company entered into an investment
cooperative agreement with the People’s
Municipal Government of Dunhua, Jilin province,
the PRC in August 2021 in relation to the
Group’s proposed investment in a kitchen waste
treatment project with a planned capacity of 210
tons per day located in Dunhua. As such, lJilin
Wanding Yisheng Environmental Protection
Technology Co., Ltd.* (EMEBREARREHEE
R A 7)) (“Dunhua Plant”), a limited liability
company wholly-owned by the Group was
established.

(i)

(iif)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB T

(iv)

(v)

In June 2022, Dunhua Plant was granted an exclusive
concession right (BOT model) by Dunhua Municipal
People’s Government to operate a kitchen waste
plant with capacity of 200 tons per day for a term of
30 years. The municipal government is currently
processing the land expropriation and therefore
Dunhua Plant has not commenced any business or
construction as at 31 March 2023.

Guoyang Plant

Yisheng (Guoyang) Environment Protection
Technology Co. Ltd.* (B CREE) BEEMER A
Al) (EMEHZER QA (“Guoyang Plant”) is a
limited liability company established in the PRC and
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group. The
planned capacity of Guoyang Plant is 126 tons per
day, and the relevant operation concession period of
the project is 25 years.

Service concession agreement for Guoyang Plant
was entered in March 2022. As at 31 March
2023, draft for planning and design of Guoyang
Plant was preliminarily established and the
Guoyang Plant is currently negotiating with the
local government for the site selection and terms
of such land(s). As such, no construction has been
commenced as at 31 March 2023 and up to the
date of this report.

Hanzhong Plant

Hanzhong Yisheng Biological Technology Co. Ltd*
(ERmEREAEMEFE AR QA (“Hanzhong
Plant”) is an 80%-owned subsidiary of the Group.
The Group has been negotiating with the
municipal government of Hanzhong on service
concession arrangement and site selection and
therefore its construction is yet to commence as
31 March 2023.

(iv)

(v)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Hancheng Plant

Hancheng Plant Hancheng Jiemu Environmental
Technology Co. Ltd* (FBEIZMWIRREEABRA
Al) (“Hancheng Plant”) is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group, and was granted an
exclusive concession right by Hancheng Federation
of Supply and Marketing Cooperatives* (% 4 M
#8A EBE A 4) in May 2018 for operating a
kitchen waste plant with capacity of 20,000 tons
per annum for a term of 30 years.

As disclosed in the 2020, 2021 and 2022 annual
reports, during construction, certain design
deficiencies were found in respect of the waste-
water system of Hancheng Plant which have not
been clearly illustrated in the environmental
assessment report where such deficiencies may
result in the malfunction of Hancheng Plant's
operation as well as imposition of penalty for
output of polluted water. During FY2020, the
Group received several reminders from the
Hancheng Federation of Supply and Marketing
Cooperatives urging for resumption of
construction of Hancheng Plant; on the other
hand the Hancheng Municipal Ministry of Natural
Resources also issued an administrative penalty
notice alleging Hancheng Plant for occupying
certain collective land. According to such notice,
the ministry’s penalties included: (i) returning such
occupied collective land; (ii) confiscate any
building and facilities on such occupied collective
land; and (iii) payment of penalty of
approximately RMB260,000. As such, the entire
construction of Hancheng Plant has been pending
since FY2020 until the above matters are
resolved. The Group has put forward to the
Hancheng Federation of Supply and Marketing
Cooperatives for the modification of the
Hancheng Plant design and possible solutions to
the above-mentioned land issue but no
agreement was reached and therefore the
construction of Hancheng Plant was pending.

(vi)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
M(EEFQT uﬁ?ﬂ& Tﬁ

Subsequently, the Group and Hancheng Federation
of Supply and Marketing Cooperative reached an
understanding and proposed, among others, to
terminate the development of Hancheng Plant.
During the vyear ended 31 March 2022, the
Hancheng Federation of Supply and Marketing
Cooperative submitted the relevant
documentations of Hancheng Plant to Audit
Bureau, and the Group and the Hancheng
Federation of Supply and Marketing Cooperative
shall negotiate and reach a clearance arrangement
once such audit is completed. Such audit is yet to
complete as at 31 March 2023 and up to the date
of this report.

In the current Year, impairment loss of
approximately HK$2,042,000 (approximately
RMB1,797,000) was recognised having considered
the long-negotiation processing time with
Hancheng authorities.

2. Development and management of environmental
protection industrial park

1

Yixing Plant

Yisheng (Yixing) Environmental Technology
Limited* BR (HE8)RFEIMAR AR ("Yixing
Plant”) is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group
for investment in a production and research and
development base project of multiple effect
membraned istillation (V-MEMD) technology in
Yixing. Pursuant to the cooperation agreement
between the Group and China Yixing
Environmental Science and Technology Industrial
Park Management Committee (FF B E EIRR R %
TEEEHEZLZEE) entered on 12 April 2022,
the project is divided into 3 phases with a total
project investment of approximately US$160
million. The investment amount of phase 1 is
approximately US$40 million, details of which are
set out in the Company’s announcement dated
12 April 2022.
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During the Year, Yixing Plant obtained its land use
right and currently has been preparing for the
construction, among others, the application of
formal construction permit. The construction is
expected to commence after those preparation
works are done.

Yixing Plant will be primarily constructed for rental
purposes and therefore the land use right was
classified as investment properties at the vyear
end.

Xi‘an Plant

The Group entered into a joint venture agreement
on 19 November 2021, pursuant to which the
Group and other 2 investors agreed to establish
Yisheng Zhihui Technology Industrial Development
(Xi‘an) Limited* BEAEEMEEXER (BAR)A
R A& (“Yisheng Zhihui”), with a registered
capital of US$10.0 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$77.90 million) which shall be
contributed by the parties in cash. Upon
establishment of Yisheng Zhihui, it will be owned
as to 62.5% by the Group.

The principal activities of Yisheng Zhihui include
sales, manufacturing and research and
development of environmental protection
equipment, park management services. To carry
out the aforesaid business purpose, it is intended
that Yisheng Zhihui shall participate in the
bidding of a land parcel located in the Xi‘an
National Hi-tech Industries Development Zone, of
Xi'an, Shaanxi, the PRC (“the Land Parcel”).
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Within 10 days after the successful bidding of the
Land Parcel by Yisheng Zhihui, the other 2
investors may elect to exercise the call option to
acquire a total of 29.16% equity interests in
Yisheng Zhihui from the Group. Should both
investors choose to exercise such call option, the
equity interest held by the Group in Yisheng
Zhihui will decrease to 33.34%, details of which
are set out in the Company’'s announcement
dated 19 November 2021.

As at 31 March 2023 and up to the date of this
report, the Land Parcel has not yet been put to
auction and the Group therefore did not make
any capital contribution to Yisheng Zhihui.

New energy materials

The Group entered into the joint venture agreement in
relation to the formation of Shenzhen Huamingsheng
Technology Limited* AU M ZERB R EBER A 7
(“Huamingsheng”) with Shanghai Bakusi
Superconducting New Materials Co., Ltd* (& B & Hf
FBE M B AR 2 A) (“Shanghai Bakusi”) on 22
November 2022. The principal activities of
Huamingsheng includes production of graphite-based
related anode materials. Both parties agreed to establish
Huamingsheng with a registered capital of RMB68.6
million. Upon establishment of Huamingsheng, it will be
owned as to 51% and 49% by the Group and
Shanghai Bakusi, respectively; Huamingsheng will be a
non wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group.

Since its formation, Huamingsheng has been setting up
its production lines and placing orders for acquisition of
machineries. As of 31 March 2023, such orders
amounting to approximately HK$73,597,000
(approximately RMB64,765,000) of machineries were still
in transit or under inspection and therefore classified
under prepayments, deposits and other receivables.

Huamingsheng has been carrying its setup and trial
operation up to the date of this report.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Other on-going matters

1.

Clear Industry

References are made to the 2020, 2021 and 2022
annual reports in respect of the Group’s prior
acquisition of 51% equity interests in Clear Industry in
November 2016 and subsequent return of the same
equity interests pursuant to the settlement agreement
dated 28 May 2020.

Pursuant to such settlement agreement, the parties
agreed to resolve the dispute by, among others, the
Group to return all its equity interests in Clear Industry
as acquired in the prior acquisition to Qinggin
International Group Limited (“Qinggin”), while Qinggin
shall return to the Group RMB36 million, being all cash
consideration already paid by the Group (the “Cash
Refund”), in 5 installments, and dispose the
18,982,992 Company’s shares (being the consideration
shares issued by the Company to Qinggin (as vendor) as
part of consideration for the prior acquisition) and
return the proceeds to the Group by 28 November
2021 (as supplemented by a supplemental agreement
dated 7 May 2021). As at 31 March 2022, outstanding
Cash Refund was RMB13.0 million.

During the Year, the Group received the remaining
outstanding Cash Refund of approximately RMB13.0
million and interest of approximately RMB422,000 from
Qinggin. Currently, the Group is still in the process of
recovering the penalty charges and legal costs of
approximately RMB898,000 from Qinggin.
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The consideration shares are yet to be disposed of as at
the date of this report as the Company aims to proceed
with the disposal when the market price of the
Company’s share reaches an optimal level. The
Company shall further negotiate with Qinggin with
regard to the disposal period if necessary, and is of the
view that such postponement does not have material
adverse impact and is in the interests of the Company
and the Shareholders.

Vimab Holding AB (“Vimab”)

References are made to the 2020, 2021 and 2022
annual reports in respect of, among others, the prior
acquisition of entire equity interests in Vimab in May
2018, the locked-up arrangement of the 19,488,428
consideration shares (being the consideration shares
issued by the Company as part of consideration for the
acquisition of Vimab) to the vendors and the
discontinuance of Vimab's operations as a result of
enforcement of pledged shares of Vimab by its creditor.

Pursuant to the acquisition agreement entered in May
2018, 19,488,428 consideration shares issued by the
Company to the vendors were lock-up and should be
released upon fulfilment of certain financial benchmarks
(including the audited EBITDA) by the Vimab Group for
each of the financial years ended 31 December 2018
and 2019.

Since Vimab ceased to be a subsidiary of the Company
upon enforcement of the Pledge as stated above, the
Company was unable to conduct audit on the Vimab
Group to ascertain the audited EBITDA for 2018 and
2019. Therefore, the Company attempted to negotiate
with the relevant parties to the acquisition agreement
to resolve the matter.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Significant Event after the reporting period

Amendments to the memorandum and articles of
association, adoption of the new share option scheme and
termination of the existing share option scheme

At the extraordinary general meeting of the Company convened on
30 May 2023, the shareholders of the Company approved: (i) the
amendments to the Company’s Memorandum and Articles of
Association pursuant to the Consultation Conclusions on Listing
Regime for Overseas Issuers published by the Stock Exchange in
November 2021 which requires, among others, the listed issuers to
adopt a uniform set of 14 “Core Standards” for shareholder
protections for the issuers; and (ii) the adoption of the Company’s
new share option scheme (the “New Option Scheme”) and the
termination of the Company’s then existing share option scheme.

The adoption date for the New Option Scheme was on 30 May
2023. From the New Option Scheme being adopted up to the date
of this report, no share options have been granted. The New Option
Scheme will remain in force for 10 years and expire on 29 May
2033.

Outlook

Over the past decade development, the 1st and 2nd tier cities in
mainland China have established and operated their own kitchen
waste treatment projects, and leaving limited room for further
growth. In recent years, the growth engine for kitchen waste
treatment projects therefore has shifted to 3rd and 4th tier cities, as
However,
kitchen waste, and the lack of mature collection system in these
directly affect operational
investment return. As such, in the event that the Company decides

well as some rural and urban areas. the volume of

areas will performance as well as
to invest in kitchen waste treatment projects in these areas, the
Company will cooperate with other organic waste solution providers
to jointly develop integrated organic waste projects (including
processing kitchen waste) so as to creating synergies, enhancing
operational efficiency, and mitigating investment risks.
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Anode materials are mainly applied in power batteries, energy
storage, and multi-purpose portable electronic products. In the
coming years, power batteries and energy storage will continue to
be the driver to the demand for anode materials. In the power
batteries, the growth is resulting from the continuous development
of new energy electric vehicles with no longer relying on subsidies,
as well as increasing demand for electric vehicles from consumers.
In the energy storage, the National Development and Reform
Commission has "14th Five-Year Plan” for the
Development of New Energy Storage, proposing that by 2025, new
have entered the stage of large-scale
development from the initial commercialisation phase, with an aim

issued the

energy storage will

to achieve energy stability and the goal of carbon peaking and
carbon neutrality; therefore, demand for anode materials is expected
to remain strong in the coming years driven by the applications in
power batteries and energy storage.

The overall market conditions of the construction industry in Hong
Kong still facing challenges. The increasing material costs due to
global inflationary pressures is cutting into our profit margin.
However, in view of the land policy of the Hong Kong Government
in increasing land supply for housing developments,
conservatively optimistic as to the long term demands in the
construction industry.

we are

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Results of the Group

During the Year, revenue of the Group decreased by approximately
16.8% to approximately HK$545.2 million (FY2022: HK$654.9
million), which was due to the decrease in both Construction
Business and Environmental Protection Business. Further discussion
and analysis on the financial performance of each business segment
of the Group is set out in the section headed “Business Review”
above.

Loss for the Year attributable to owners of the Company amounted
to approximately HK$20.8 million as compared to profit attributable
to owners of approximately HK$2.1 million for the prior year.

Basic loss per share was HK1.60 cents as compared to earnings per
share of HKO0.53 cents for the prior year.

Diluted loss per share was HK1.60 cents as compared to earnings
per share of HK0.53 cents for the prior year.
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Other income and gains, net
Other
HK$65.3 million to HK$38.2 million. In the prior year, the amount
mainly represented (i) gain of disposal of approximately HK$14.2
million of Taiyuan Plant, and (ii) impairment of
approximately HK$24.1 million in respect of Hefei Plant’s operating
concession arrangement. During the Year, other income and gains

income and gains, net, decreased from approximately

reversal of

was mainly generated from compensation of approximately HK$14.9
million (RMB13.1 million) for release of guaranteed fertilizer revenue
from Hefei Plant, government grant of approximately HK$3,028,000
(RMB2,635,000) as investment incentive for Yixing Plant, and receipt
of Employment Support Scheme under Anti-epidemic Fund of
approximately HK$3,806,000.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses decreased slightly by 3.47% from
approximately HK$95.0 million in FY2022 to HK$91.7 million in
FY2023. The decrease in administrative expenses was mainly
resulted from: (i) increase in exchange loss of approximately
HK$18.1 million (FY2022: exchange gain of HK$6.7 million) due to
the depreciation of RMB; (ii) decrease in general staff costs by
approximately HK$14.9 million along with tighten cost control and
decrease in staff numbering; and (iii) decrease in approximately
HK$4.8 million
amortisation for those share options granted in previous years.

share option expense, along with the full

Finance costs

The Group’s overall borrowing level went up from approximately
HK$73.7 million as at 31 March 2022 to approximately HK$167.0
million as at 31 March 2023, and it was mainly resulted from the
borrowings raised for each of Hefei Plant and Xuancheng Plant of
RMB35.0 million and RMB82.8 million, respectively. However, as
these borrowings. However, these borrowings were raised in 3rd
and 4th quarters and therefore do not contribute full year expense
for the current Year.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 March 2023, the Group had bank balances and cash of
approximately HK$134.5 million (as at 31 March 2022:
approximately HK$117.5 million).
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The total interest-bearing loans comprising leases liabilities, bonds,
convertible bond, bank and other borrowings of the Group as at
31 March 2023 was approximately HK$203.0 million (as at
31 March 2022: approximately HK$80.8 million), and current ratio
for the Year was approximately 1.33 (as at 31 March 2022:
approximately 1.16).

The Group’s borrowings and bank balances are principally
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi (“RMB"”) and there
may be significant exposure to foreign exchange rate fluctuations.

The Group will continue to monitor and assess its liquidity by,

among others, seeking for new financing resources and/or

reasonably control the outflow and progress of each of its projects.

Gearing ratio
The gearing ratio as at 31 March 2023 was approximately 60.7%
(as at 31 March 2022: approximately 42.3%).

The decrease in gearing
decrease in overall Group’s borrowings during the Year.

ratio was mainly attributable to the

The gearing ratio is calculated as the payables incurred not in the

ordinary course of business (excluding loan from a related
companies/directors/shareholders) divided by total equity attributable

to the owners of the Company as at the respective years.

Pledge of assets

As at 31 March 2023, the Group pledged certain assets including
property, plant and equipment with carrying values of
approximately HK$35,255,000 (as at 31 March 2022: approximately
HK$45,310,000), as collateral to secure the facilities granted to the
Group.

The Group also guaranteed certain facilities through the pledge of
equity interests in subsidiary of the Group.

Foreign exchange exposure

Certain revenue-generating operations and assets and liabilities of
the Group are denominated in RMB and may expose the Group to
the fluctuation of Hong Kong dollars against RMB. The Group did
not enter into any hedging arrangement or derivative products.
However, the Board and management will continue to monitor the
foreign currency exchange exposure and will consider adopting
certain hedging measures against the currency risk when necessary.
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Fund-raising activities in the past 12 months
During the Year, the fund-raising activities are as follows:

Date of

announcement

ABEH

Fund raising activities

SEEH
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENmEON

BENREANKREEE
FACKERHOT

Actual use of

proceeds as at
Intended use of proceeds 31 March 2023

12023%3A318

Fi Rk IE R B R g MEREERRE

19 January 2023 and
15 March 2023

2023517198 &
202353 A15H

16 November 2022
and 2 December
2022

2022114168 &
202251228

19 October 2022 and
28 October 2022

20224104198 &
20225 10A288

Issue of 136,800,000 new Shares to Yuan
Heng Group International Co., Limited at
HK$0.38 per Share. The subscription was

completed on 15 March 2023

Nominal value of issued shares was

HK$13,680,000

BERBETATTSERBRERAA
317136,800,0000 T it - ZREE B

24202338158 B/

B #1718 513,680,000% 7T

Placing of 98,000,000 new Shares at
HK$0.385 per Share through placing agent
which was completed on 2 December

2022

Nominal value of issued shares was

HK$9,800,000

BRREREBERERISETNERES
98,000,000 #7 i 17 + = IR AL & B 722022

F12A28 %K

B 81713 E 8 49,800,000/ 7T

Issue of 129,624,000 new Shares to Hong
Kong Toprich Investment Limited at
HK$0.27 per Share. The subscription was

completed on 28 October 2022

Nominal value of issued shares was
HK$12,962,400

BER2IBTHERRNEERERE
BIR A E17129,624,00088 31 B 17
RAABER2022%F107288 K

BETRINEEA12,962,400% 7T

Approximately HK$51.78 million (i) approximately HK$45.2 million (i) Fully applied as

for developing the graphene intended
technology related business of
the Group; and (ii) approximately (i) The amount is
HK$6.58 million as the Group's expected to be
general working capital applied during
the year ending 31
March 2024
4452000008 TRRERAE () BRAEZEDA
B ARBRITEBES R
#)6,580,0008 TEAR KA (i) ZHERAREE
—REEES - 2024%3A310 1L F
EE)i

Approximately HK$36.97 million (i) approximately HK$35.30 million (i) Fully applied as

as the initial investment cost for intended
potential kitchen waste

treatment and other

environmental protection related

projects; and

(ii) approximately HK$1.67 million as (i) Fully applied as
general working capital of the intended
Group

#)35,300,0008 TREEEEH () BRAAZEHA
REREMRRIEEAEENDR
BEKKR: R

#1,6700008 THAALE — (i) ERHEEEDA

(ii

Approximately HK$34.99 million (i) approximately HK$25.0 million (i) Fully applied as

for repayment of the interest- intended
bearing liabilities of the Group;
and

(ii

approximately HK$9.99 million as (i) Fully applied as
general working capital of the intended

Group

#25,000,0008 TRRERAE () ERHEEEDA
BMiH AR R

#99,990,0008 TR XA KE — (i) BRAUZEHA
REEES

(ii
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BIRE T wm &k

Date of
announcement

AHEH

Fund raising activities Net proceeds

REED Fi@B R EFH#

Intended use of proceeds

Ffi 8 305 &t 81 38

Actual use of
proceeds as at
31 March 2023
12023%3A318
fRREERRE

28 March 2022 and
21 April 2022

2022434288 &
2022447218

Issue of 185,748,000 new Shares at HK$0.40  Approximately HK$74.20 million
per Share to 6 subscribers, being citizens
of the PRC. The subscription was
completed on 21 April 2022

Nominal value of issued shares was
HK$18,574,800

RER0AETHMERMNEREA (BRELR #74,200,000% 7T
) %17185,748,000 31 & 17 - & X R
BR2022F4 8218 =K

BRTRHEEA18,574,800% T

(i

approximately HK$32.92 million
as the initial investment cost for
the kitchen waste treatment
project in Dunhua;

(ii

approximately HK$39.0 million as
the initial investment cost for
potential kitchen waste
treatment and other
environmental protection related
projects; and

(iii) approximately HK$2.28 million as
general working capital of the
Group

(i) #)32,920,0007% 7T B F AL B 2
RERENNBREEKAS

(ii) #939,000,0007 T A {E BT B #
REREMBRIAMEEMDE
BREKAR: R

(iii) #92,280,0008 LB T A LB —
REEES

Except for the HK$23.21

million for the
kitchen waste
treatment project in
Dunhua is expected
to be applied during
the year ending 31
March 2024, the rest
of the net proceeds
were fully applied as
intended

BRICESRRERE N

23,210,000 LT
REE202453A31
AIEFEHAMN E
BABREFECR
SEEHBAE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Capital commitments

As at 31 March 2023, the Group had capital commitment of
approximately HK$1.7 million (as at 31 March 2022: HK$56.7
million) in relation to the projects of the Group under the ordinary
course of business.

Human resources management

As at 31 March 2023, the Group had 309 employees,
Directors (as at 31 March 2022: 318 employees, including Directors).
Total (including Directors’ emoluments) were
approximately HK$102.0 million for the Year as compared to
approximately HK$113.3 million for FY2022. Remuneration was
determined with

including

staff costs

reference to market norms and individual

employees’ performance, qualification and experience.

On top of basic salaries, bonuses may be paid by reference to the
Group’s performance as well as individual’'s performance. Other staff
benefits include provision of retirement benefit, injury insurance and
share options.

Significant investments held
During the Year, the Group did not hold any significant investment
in equity interest in any other company.

Material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries and
affiliated companies

Save as disclosed herein, the Group did not have any material
acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries and affiliated companies

during the Year.

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 March 2023, the Group had outstanding performance
bond for construction contracts amounting to approximately
HK$36.9 million (as at 31 March 2022: approximately HK$8.5
million).

/'SL‘(EEJ:D?EFFE& *ﬁ

BERRIE

M2023F3A31B - A S B EH B EK
BEFPRAEENEEHELENE REE
#) /&1,700,000% 7T (7A202243H318 :
56,700,000 7T )

ANERER

M2023F3A/318 * & &£ B # F309% (R
202238318 :318%) B E (BRIFEE) -
REEHMEINALE(RRBRETHE2)D
/$102,000,0007% 7T ffﬁzozzﬁﬁ I F fg‘ 849
113,300,000/ 7T HEM D2 B WM B & 48
UREREERE - ét%&%&%ﬁ?ﬁzo

BREAFHSI AEENAESREEE
18 A SRR FIIEAL » ﬁ{ﬁﬁlhfl@%ﬁﬁﬁ%m
HERRBER - BT R & B

FiEXRA

RAFEE  REBLEFARETAEMLAF
WEMERRERE
EXHBATIREBMBASKERIHES
I5

BRARMAREEIN  RAFE  AEEL

BETEMEAME QR KB X RWE
RHEER-

HAREE

M2023F3A31H AEBBEBEESON
KIEITE X R K€ 5 4 536,900,000 7T
(72202243 A31H : 48,500,000/ Jt.) °
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BB T

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the Year.

CODE OF CONDUCT FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)

Securities

contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of
conduct for dealing in securities of the Company by the Directors.

Specific enquiries have been made with all Directors, and all
Directors confirmed in writing that they have complied with the
required standards as set out in the Model Code regarding their
securities transactions for the Year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board believes that good corporate governance is one of the
areas leading to the success of the Company and balancing the
interests of shareholders, customers and employees, and the Board
is devoted to ongoing enhancement of the efficiency and
effectiveness of such principles and practices.

The Company has adopted the compliance manual which sets out
the minimum standard of good practices concerning the general
management responsibilities of the Board with which the Company
and the Directors shall comply and which contains, among other
things, the code provisions of the corporate governance codes (the
“CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules as its
own code of corporate governance.

The Board considers that the Company has complied with the code
provisions set out in the CG Code during the Year.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board proposes not to recommend payment of a final dividend
to the shareholders for FY2023 (FY2022: nil).

BBE HENBEOFASTMHE
™ 55 5%

RAFEE - AR RS EANE R 7R
B HEREEARAEF ETES

EFETESFXINTATA

ARB D HRA LT AR B S0P 8 £ %
TABEZETEFRXZINBRETR(RE
SR EREABERETARAESR
ZHITRT A -

ARABMEBEFEITAREN M2
FREHUBERR  BERAFEERH
55258 IRETRIF ML TRA

K
[z

EXREGEH

EFEMAE RFNCEERTIEIALAT
BRRNLFERE B REE S
MEEL— MEFERNHEEARER
B B % A 40 3K K R 3 o

ARAREFEM—DERTM  EPHIIARE
EXoRRERAANREERARERE
WE W (Eh 81E) Em R A48
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

AUDIT COMMITTEE AND REVIEW OF THE
ANNUAL RESULTS

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) was
established in compliance with Rules 3.21 and 3.22 of the Listing
Rules with written terms of reference. The latest terms of reference
of the Audit Committee are available on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

A summary of work of the Audit Committee during the Year is as
follows:

o met with the external auditors, reviewed and made
recommendations for the Board’s approval on the annual and
interim results and reports of the Company;

o reviewed and approved audit fee;
o recommended the re-appointment of BDO Limited (“BDO") as
auditors, subject to the shareholders’ approval at the annual

general meeting; and

o reviewed the effectiveness of the Company’s risk management
and internal control systems.

BB RS am M o AT

EREEEREFRENER

KRR ERZEE ([ExEEg]) HER
EWRBIEI 2R3 226Ky WEAEBE®E
BEEE SYNEZZESREHE TN
RA R A R AT SR -

ERZEERAFENTHERZMT

. e RINBZBE  BHARARAZFE
BomHRE FRATHHmELE
HERGHAE

. mE R EZBER

. RREBERLERRGAMELHM
BERAR([MEER]) RZEE - N
FRENBREFRG LA R

o BHAAFRREERABELE
B B 2 -
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS

AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EEREREBAEBNBEFE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Zhu Yongjun, aged 56, was appointed as the Chairman of the
Board and an executive director of the Company on 24 May 2016.
He is also a member of the nomination committee of the Board.

Mr. Zhu is the Chairman and an executive director of China Water
Industry Group Limited (“China Water”) (a company listed on the
main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited) (the
“Stock Exchange”) (Stock Code: 1129).
director of EverChina Int'l Holdings Company Limited (a company
listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange) (Stock Code: 202)
from May 2008 to February 2013 and the chairman of the board of
Limited*
("Heilongjiang Interchina Water Treatment”) (a company listed on
the Shanghai Stock Exchange) (Stock Code: 600187), from January
2009 to May 2015. Mr. Zhu obtained his undergraduate from
Hunan University in 1989, and a Master's degree of business

He was an executive

Heilongjiang Interchina Water Treatment Co.,

administration in Peking University in the People’s Republic of China
in 2005. He started his environmental protection career in 2001.

Mr. Pan Yimin, aged 47, was appointed as an executive director of
the Company on 24 March 2021. He was the president of Tianjin
Dongfang Mingrui Investment Management Co., Ltd* since 2013
prior to joining the Company. Mr. Pan was the vice president of
Interchina (Tianjin) Water Treatment Co., Ltd.* from April 2011 to
March 2013, and a deputy manager of Heilongjiang Interchina
Water Treatment from April 2009 to March 2011. Mr. Pan was
appointed as the vice president of China Water since March 2021
and is in charge of the financial department, general department
and risk control department. Mr. Pan obtained a bachelor’s degree
in Economics in 1998 from lJiangxi University of Finance and
Economics.

Mr. Lee Tsi Fun Nicholas, aged 45, was appointed as an executive
director of the Company on 31 August 2018. He joined the
Company in November 2015 and was appointed as the Company’s
company secretary on 24 May 2016. Since year 2016, he is also the
company secretary and director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company. Mr. Lee is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the American Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. He graduated from the University of Oregon in
the United States of America with a Bachelor of Science degree in
year 1999.

MITES
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Sui Guangyi, aged 60, was the non-executive director of China
Investment Fund Company Limited (stock code: 612) (“CIV"), (a
company listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange from
September 2015, and the chairman of CIV from October 2015. He
resigned from the said positions in CIV in January 2020. Mr. Sui

obtained a bachelor’s degree from Yunnan Technology College* &

AR F it FEA2 2B in 1990.

Dr. Ge Xiaolin, aged 57, was appointed as a non-executive director
of the Company on 2 July 2020. Dr. Ge is the chairman of Tianjin
SOFIT Building Materials Co., Ltd. Dr. Ge received a master’s degree
in 1990 and a bachelor’'s degree in 1988 in Hunan University,
subsequently obtained his Ph.D. degree in Beijing University in 2013,
and postdoctoral researcher in Applied Economics
University in 2010. Dr. Ge was the (Term Ninth to Tenth) member
of All-China Youth Association. Prior to founding his own company,
Dr. Ge worked in China Pinghe Import & Export Co., Ltd. (as

in Hunan

general manager), and Goalmark International Group (as vice

general manager and subsequent as general manager).

Dr. Zhang Lihui, aged 52, was appointed as a non-executive
director of the Company on 8 September 2016. Dr. Zhang is a
managing partner of Tsing Capital. Dr. Zhang has been focusing on
the investment related to environmental protection, clean energy,
high technology and precious materials in China since joining Tsing
Capital.

Dr. Zhang received a master’s degree in Laws and a bachelor’s
degree
Languages, subsequently obtained his Ph.D. degree in Economics

in Technology English in PLA University of Foreign

from the University of International Business and Economics.
Dr. Zhang also completed the Advanced Management Program at
Harvard Business School in 2009.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Lo Chun Chiu, Adrian, aged 67, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company on 26 August
2014. He is the chairman of the nomination committee of the Board
and a member of each of the audit committee and remuneration
committee of the Board.

Mr. Lo was awarded a Bachelor of Laws degree by the University of
London in August 1988. He is a member of the Law Society of
Hong Kong and has been a practicing solicitor in Hong Kong since
November 1991 in general legal practice. From December 1993 to
the date of this annual report, Mr. Lo has been a partner of Joseph
C.T. Lee & Co. and engaged in various fields of legal practice
involving commercial and conveyancing litigation, acquisition and
sale of business and/or companies, company liquidation, charity
foundation works, formation of religious organisations, family law,
immigration law and employment law. He is an independent non-
executive director of Huarchi Global Group Holdings Limited (a
company listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange) (Stock
Code: 2296) since November 2019.

Dr. Tong Ka Lok, aged 60, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company on 26 August 2014. He is the
chairman of the audit committee of the Board and a member of
each of the nomination committee and remuneration committee of
the Board.

Dr. Tong was awarded a Doctor of Public Health degree
(epidemiology and biostatistics) from the Macau University of
Science and Technology in August 2013. Dr. Tong is a founder and
partner of Baker Tilly Macao Certified Public Accountants which was
established in October 2000. He is an auditor registered at the
Committee for the Registry of Auditors and Accountants in Macau
in January 2006. Besides his business establishment, Dr. Tong was
appointed as a member of the Nanjing Committee of CPPCC* (
BARBGAHEAEZEBERAMELZE®R), and Vice President of the
Macau University of Science and Technology in 2012, and a
University Council Member in 2013.
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Mr. Choy Wai Shek, Raymond, MH, JP, aged 74, was appointed as
an independent non-executive director of the Company on
26 August 2014. He is the chairman of our the remuneration
committee of the Board and a member of each of the nomination
committee and audit committee of the Board.

Mr. Choy joined the Group in January 2013 as a director of New
Concepts Foundation Limited (“NC Foundation”). Mr. Choy has been
carrying out an independent non-executive role in NC Foundation,
mainly responsible for advising on corporate governance of NC
Foundation. Mr. Choy also acts as an independent non- executive
director of Far East Hotels and Entertainment Limited (a company
listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 37), AB Builders Group
Limited (a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code:
1615)) and WAC Holdings Limited (a company listed on GEM (stock
code: 8619)).

Mr. Choy holds a Diploma in Chinese Law awarded from the
University of East Asia (now known as the University of Macau) in
October 1987 and a Diploma
International Affairs College, Hong Kong in July 1988.

in Political Science from the

He was the Chairman of the Sham Shui Po District Board from April
1991 to September 1994, a Hong Kong affairs adviser appointed by
the Hong Kong and Macao Affairs Office of the State Council and
the Xinhua News Agency from 1994 to 1997, the vice-chairman of
the Occupational Safety and Health Council of the Labour and
Welfare Bureau from 2004 to 2010, a member of the Energy
Advisory Committee of the Environment Bureau from 2006 to 2012
and a member of the Consumer Council of the Commerce and
Economic Development Bureau from 2005 to 2011.

He was a member of the Guangzhou Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference (“CPPCC")* (Term Ninth
to Twelfth) (FEIARBUAM A CHEINTZE E). He was also
elected as a vice president of GMC Hong Kong Members
Association in February 2012. He is the Honorary Committee
Member of The Chinese General Chamber of Commerce, Hong
Kong (“CGCC") and was also the Chairman of Member’s Service

Committee of CGCC.

*  For identification purpose only
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chu Shu Cheong, aged 62, is the founder of the Group the
director of the Company’s major subsidiary, namely NC Foundation.
He possesses over 24 years of management experience in
foundation, civil engineering and building works of various nature.

Besides his business achievement, Mr. Chu was also appointed as
the honorary chairman of the China Star Light Charity Fund
Association in 2000, a member of the Guangdong Province
Committee of CPPCC (FEIARBAH M E@ZEREMIELTZER)
in October 2011 and a member of the Guangzhou Committee of
the CPPCC (FEARBUAHEEHEMTZE®) in December
2011.
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The Board hereby presents the annual report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year
(the "Consolidated Financial Statements”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

During the Year, the principal activity of the Company is investment

holding. The principal activities of its subsidiaries comprise
construction works in Hong Kong and environmental protection
business in the PRC. Details of the principal activities of the
principal subsidiaries of the Company are set out in note 1 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements. There were no significant
changes in the nature of the principal activities of the Group during

the Year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The revenue of the Group is wholly derived from the construction
works conducted in Hong Kong and environmental protection
business in the PRC. An analysis of the Group's performance for the
Year is set out in note 6 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

A review of the business of the Group for the Year, including the
important events affecting the Group that have occurred since the
end of the Year and the likely future business development is set
out in the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis”
on pages 6 to 27 of this annual report. This discussion form part of
the Report of Directors.

Further details relating to the Group’s relationships with its key
stakeholders and the Group’s policies and
performance can be found in the Company’s 2023 Environmental,
Social and Governance Report, which is published in electronic form

environmental

only and available on the Company’'s website at the section of
If any
shareholder wishes to receive a printed copy of the Company’s
2023 Environmental, and Governance Report,
shareholder may submit his/her/its request to the Company by post
to our head office in Hong Kong at Office B, 3/F, Kingston
International Centre, 19 Wang Chiu Road, Kowloon Bay, Hong Kong
or by through the Company’s
http://www.primeworld-china.com.

Investor Relations: http://www.primeworld-china.com.

Social such

email website at
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group has adopted and implemented environmental protection
policies and procedures to enable it to commit to the long term
sustainability of the environment and communities in which it
operates. During the Year, the Group complied with the relevant
environmental laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the Group’s business where the Group is operating.

Details of the key laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the Group’s businesses, their key scope and our
compliance measures are outlined in the following table:

Laws and Regulations Key scope

EBRR G TEAE

RIFEBRRRE

AEBERMALEE T ZHRRERERR N
BF - ETEARBEEMELEREFHE
BEREAR - RAFER AEECDNEH
REMEBBARBEBAEATENN
BIRRIERRRA -

TERBIHAEEXBEEAZENTER
ERERD - HEAT2HRERANEE SRS
HEH) R 15 -

Compliance measures

ERERE

Air Pollution Control (Non- Contractor must not sell or lease, or
road Mobile Machinery) cause to be sold or leased, a regulated
(Emission) Regulation machine for use in Hong Kong unless the
(Chapter 311Z of the machine is approved or exempted.

Laws of Hong Kong)

(ERFARAEH GEBRY MIIFXZREMME EERE TR
A (BB RONE ARBTESLENEEZEMARESR
EIEPIE3112E) BEA - IS R B 5 T A A

HESEZD-

Contractor must not use or cause to be
used a regulated machine in any specified
activity unless the machine is approved or
exempted.

BRIERIRERMEZ ERERL TR
EMBE N SERPASPERARLHE

FAZ M
Air Pollution Control Contractor is required to take dust
(Construction Dust) reduction measures when construction
Regulation (Chapter work is being carried out.
311R of the Laws of
Hong Kong)

(ERERAEFCGREETR AEREMRINEIER  ROERK
EER) MOINEBEGE 3o
311RE)

Applications for lease and use of
regulated machine have been made and
approval certificates for emission
compliance were obtained.

AEECEHAREERERTRE R
WEV R - I E S A HERUE RS E
HEE-

The relevant approval label has been
painted or securely fixed on the
machine and is displayed at a
conspicuous position, which is also
properly maintained.
HARERHSRER IR ZBE TR #
W WREBEAERCERRRZS
R -

Compliance manual is in place for
operational staff.

EREREABERNARTM-

Regular briefing and training are
conducted to enhance their awareness
on the legislation.

EHERITEN KRB REBREAEH
EBIE) R AN
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Laws and Regulations Key scope Compliance measures

EB RSB TEGE BRERE

Noise Control Ordinance  Controls construction noise ranges from: Compliance manual is in place for

(Chapter 400 of the operational staff.
Laws of Hong Kong)
(RBZEHRODERBED EHRERT 21 ERBRIEABHEBNARFM-
5£400%)
(a)  the use of powered mechanical Site supervisor is presented at the
equipment construction site.
(@) ERARDRBIEESL KB ABRE B A EREME -
(b)  the carrying out of certain noisy Construction noise permit has been
works in designated areas obtained.

by HEETHBENETRUESRETRE CREEERSFAUE-

The Environmental This law defines the environment as The project companies of the Group
Protection Law of the the total body of all natural elements prevent pollution in accordance with the
People’s Republic of and artificially transformed natural requirements of the Environmental
China elements affecting human existence and Protection Law.

development (including the atmosphere,
water, seas, land, minerals, forests,
grasslands, wetlands, wildlife, natural and
human remains, nature reserves, historic
sites and scenic spots, and urban and rural

areas).
FEARKEMBIRE WERBIRE  EEFEARETNE AEETBERAFKRBRERENE
REX EHNSBRAANMEBAISENBAR K @#eHRWERENER -

A=wiee 8fRAR K B8F %
o BEE R BIR R BAL
W BB  ACEY - BARER
RERBR - mm MmN -

The Law of the People’s This law defines environmental impact The project companies of the Group
Republic of China on assessment as the analysis, estimation engage independent third parties to
Environmental Impact and evaluation of possible environmental prepare environmental impact assessment
Assessment impacts resulting from the implementation  reports/competent government authorities

of a planning and construction project to issue environmental impact approvals.

and the introduction of strategies and
measures to prevent and alleviate adverse
environmental impacts as well as tracking
and monitoring processes and systems.
FEARANMBRELE WERAMBREYENE EREUREN FXEETEBERAAEZABIE=7F
HEE EREEEREARERNREZEE HRBEPETERSE BAEEHME
T FEBAMFEML - RETERSERE ARBLZEMNE -
PRIBBZENHRMEE  EITIRIEE
BBy T3 K B -
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Laws and Regulations

EBRR G

Key scope

TEAE

Compliance measures

B

The Water Pollution
Prevention Law of the
People’s Republic of
China

This law applies to the prevention and
control of pollution of rivers, lakes,
canals, drainage, reservoirs and other
surface water bodies and groundwater
within the People’s Republic of China.
AR BERRPEARANMEETAH
TR R BN B KEF R K
BB LA Rt K BB RS B R -

The prevention and control of water
pollution shall focus on prevention
while combining prevention, control and
comprehensive management. Priority
shall be given to the protection of the
sources of drinking water. Industrial

and urban pollution shall be strictly
controlled. Pollution of agricultural bases
shall be prevented and controlled. The
construction of ecological management
projects shall be encouraged. Pollution
of water bodies and damages to the
ecosystem shall be prevented, controlled

and alleviated.
KGRGREERFEN AE PR LE

CEIN:E Tl P S

A

& AR ENRA BRRERAKK

TR BBIERI TRISR  MBEATEISR

PaREmMBISHR  BEBEEERRET

R TR AR A KBS RN
HE RE BT o

The project companies of the Group
prevent water pollution in accordance
with the requirements of the Water
Pollution Prevention Law.

REBTBEBERRARIRRKISREEE
HER - @R HEATREER
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Key scope
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Compliance measures

BRERE

Administrative Measures
for Pollutant Discharge
Licensing (for Trial
Implementation)

PSR BB A (R1T)

This law applies to the application,
approval and enforcement of pollutant
discharge licenses as well as the
governance and punishments in relation
thereto.

HEOSEFRI B RS » A8 - ST A R BB
ERA AN EE MR ST BAX
W% o

The Ministry of Environmental Protection
develops and releases a category-based
administration catalogue of pollutant
discharge licensing for stationary pollution
sources stipulating the scope of the
pollutant discharge licensing system and
prescribed application time limit pursuant
to the law.

IRIE R BB AOE B E I QM B TE T RIR
PSR REREE  BEMATESE
A& IR B &5 (2] N R G I BR o

Enterprises and public institutions as well
as other producers and operators
(hereinafter referred to as “pollutant
discharging entities”) that are included in
the category-based administration
catalogue of pollutant discharge licensing
for stationary pollution sources shall apply
for and obtain a pollutant discharge
license within the prescribed time limit.
Pollutant discharging entities not included
in the category-based administration
catalogue of pollutant discharge licensing
for stationary pollution sources currently
do not need to apply for a pollutant
discharge license.

MABE SRR D RE IR L
MR EEBUMAMEERLEE (AT
AR HT B BERRA EARR R
A IS BT AT AIRE AR ALE S RIR
HSRFAI D HEBBEMNEESEM B
FEHRBHTRTAE -

The project companies of the Group
applied for pollutant discharge license(s)
in accordance with the requirements of
the measures.

REBTBERAFCERBIEZNR -
WIBPEISEFAIRE -
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Laws and Regulations

EBRR G

Key scope

TEAE

Compliance measures

BRERE

The Opinion on the
Strengthening of the
Overhaul of Gutter Oil
and Management of
Cooking Wastes issued
by the General Office of
the State Council

B 75 B 3% 1% B8 B8 7 0 58 3
BHBANEREEY
EENER

Measures for the
Administration of
Concession for
Infrastructure and Public
Utilities

EMREMDBEERS
KREEBIE

To effectively eliminate the use of gutter
oil in the food industry and strengthen
food safety and public health, 7 opinions
on further strengthening of the overhaul
of gutter oil and management of cooking
wastes have been issued with the consent
of the State Council.

AR AME R E R E R BE - JER
BRAZEMARNRSEBEE  KBK
RRE - shiE— 2 insa B M a2 TIER
H7IEER -

Concession activities in energy,
transportation, water conservancy,
environmental protection, municipal
engineering, and other infrastructure and
public utilities fields within the territory of
the PRC shall be governed by these
Measures. Implement these Measures for
purposes of encouraging and directing
social investors' participation in the
construction and operation of
infrastructure and public utilities,
improving the quality and efficiency of
public services, protecting the lawful
rights and interests of concessionaires,
protecting public interest and public
security.

FEARAMERANER BEH -
IKF - BRIBARE - T A2 55 E 8 5% b A0
NAFEEREHNEFELES BN
e AT ABEA R B S| B &AL
HEWRMANAREEEREL Ral
HRBEERNBE - REFTLEESE
B RETEARFNSNALRE -

The project companies of the Group
have implemented the tasks required by
the opinion in collaboration with the
competent authorities (i.e. municipal
environmental hygiene departments).

AEETEBERDAES T E &M (B
MARFAMZESREHELNEE
Tt

The Measures are the basis and
references for those key terms and
conditions of the Group’s service
concession arrangements.

AEBEOBFFREEEDZEZEHRFEA
SE B MR E IR IE RERT



COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The principal activities of the Group comprise construction works
and environmental protection.
allocated to ensure the on-going compliance with applicable laws
and regulations. During the Year, the Board is not aware of any
incidence of non-compliance with the relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the Group's business where the
Group is operating.

Sufficient resources have been

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The business operations and results may be affected by various
factors, some of which are external causes and some are inherent to
the business. The principal risks and uncertainties are summarised
below:

1. Outbreak of pandemic disease
For the past 3 years, the COVID-19 and relevant draconian
measures, among others, city lockdown, shut-down of

restaurants and schools resulting from the quarantine
arrangements, travel restrictions etc., adversely impacted our

businesses in Hong Kong and PRC.

While certain of our infected and
subsequently recovered, we did manage and maintain our
businesses and operations. However, another vast outbreak of
such similar virus, even following governmental guidance and
taking safety measures, still may affect our business and may
result from suspension of operations.

employees were
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BT EREBRGAIRER

AEENTIEERBEREETRRRR - K
SHEABERHER BR-BE/FSERE
BERO - RAFE BEEZQUESEAME
AN AEERLMEMBAKRERKE
EAFENBRERRBRIINBER -

FERARREAHARERE

$BEEREETHZITAREVE &
TEBABINERE B ALK E A
£ EEEBRETHNEERBMNT

1. XREFTERBRE
BE=F - COVID-190A & (B & B 2 BF
Ko B 2 BR %) & T & e A FE B AR A
o EFREEN EERHARE
ROUAEEAREARTEMNERE
AR 522 o

BERMBOBE IR HILEE
BRPIDEMERRFEE - Rl
WEBUREBRKREREE  AE
P98 1B BT 15 5| LR AR R 2 4 46
DAEFERMNER  LAlEEH
XBERE-
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2. Market conditions

The number of construction projects awarded to the Group
depends highly on the market conditions in the construction
industry, including shortage of skilled labour, availability of
new projects in private sector, Government’'s spending on
infrastructure and approval for funding proposals for public
work contracts. If there is any deterioration in any of these
factors, the operating results of construction segment will be
adversely affected.

3. Keen competition
The competition of construction industry has become more
intense as there will be a foreseeable reduction of number of
construction projects available for tendering. To increase the
chance of success in winning the tender bidding, the Group
may have to lower its profit margin, which may impact its
profit for the coming year.

4, Cost of construction materials
The increase in cost of construction materials will lower the
profit margin of the Group. Failure to accurately estimate and
control the costs of the Group’s projects may adversely affect
the Group’s financial performance.

5. Shortage of labor
For the past few years, the population and workforce in Hong
Kong has been shrinking. As such, we may require to increase
our staff costs so as to attract the talent as well as
maintaining our human resources. Any failure may cause the
Group not to proceed for projects tendering.

6. Regulatory environment
Our business is subject to the environmental regulations
issued by the Hong Kong Government and national policies of
mainland China. Such regulations may be revised from time to
time and any changes to such regulations may increase our
cost and burden in complying with them. The Group is also
required to maintain certain registration. In order to renew
and maintain these registrations, the Group is required to
comply with certain criteria set by the relevant governmental
departments and authorities. Any suspension of or a failure to
maintain or renew the Group’s registrations could adversely
affect the Group’s business.

5 &

AEEESHERAEBHEAERKE
BEEBARZEEZNT S KNS 25
Rt T AR RALEHFIAELTHEA
B BUSEERR T EA S HIA R
AATEAHTHOBERFERNL
Mo HRZERRBEEMBL  BED

MOKLERERZTNEE -

mEHN

BHREHAHRMARFANRERE &
ERERD BEXRNBEFCHUBA
e RIESTERE AKEREA
PRAREFEE  RENEMNRERE

22 48
= e

BMEF

b= D N 8 L LN E = R B
Ko REBREEERMS RIEHIRE
AT HEMBERBERTNTE -

& T 5E 6k

ERERF BEAORSHHTEH
ZHE-RAt RMAUEFEEMET
BMAABRSIAT - A REFANE
ReofMARBEER LM ER Al e g
HAEEBEXETEBRRE -

REIRIE
BPMERZBERTEMORESR
PIRPEASOBEREREE - ZF
RO T] B NS E 2 - 1 4R B Y {E fr] 22
HAEEMAEENERKNARE
F-AKETAEFETHEMER -
REAVHEFZEZEIMEL A5 H
AESTE T B AE R ER P R B
ER GRS - AEBENEMELES
LHERERBREN  THAKE
MEBBRIFNEE -



Policy change

China’s "“Environmental Protection Law"” significantly increases
companies’ costs of pollution by imposing penalties ranging
from fines to restriction or even suspension of production.
Personnel from environmental protection administrative
departments of the government shall also be faced with
demotion, dismiss or forced resignation from their current
position for failure to enforce pollution-related regulations,
and it also stipulates that violation of the Law may constitute
a criminal offence.

The central government has been sending inspection teams to
polluted provinces and holding local officials accountable for
failure to prevent and control pollution, which may resulting
in the enterprises’ shutdown for the lack of environmental
protection facilities.

More fierce laws and policies to be imposed as well as more
frequent inspection by the central government against the
violation of environmental protection rulings from time to
time. Our operations may be materially affected should we fail
to comply with the relevant environmental protection rulings
and regulations.

Technological obsolescence

Our competitive advantage in the environmental industry relies
on our technological capabilities to ensure safety, maintain
efficiency of production and keep operating costs at a
relatively low level. However, as the laws, regulations,
government policies and industry standards may impose more
stringent requirements on our existing or future projects, we
may fail to improve our technology to adapt to such changes.
Moreover, the production techniques of our competitors may
improve at a faster pace so that their costs may be reduced
to a lower level significantly or their productivity may become
significantly higher than ours.
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BRI CER 3% R & 05D §) &1 Bl & ¥E &1
K RIIAZRE  KAKIEMAFS
R - REBRBIBITITRBEEER
WBAIRRRELEEEEMFIAEH
WP AR kR FI B R AR EE
REREREERMEFET -

PTRABF-—EERSSRNENIKE
BE/NE - WHARETAR KR53
M T ERME  HRAEERAE
R = BR IR AR 7 3R e T R AR o

TR B R B E I R IR R R
EEARANTREMEREBREREREK
B AREREWESR - MR TEE
T EBRIRIERESORNMRTE - B
PMEXGAEERBERTE -

#4748 B

BPHERBETETOGFEDIBER
Bz B#RBLEEREREESEN
REEAMTEE N - A B ER
BREBRRITEFEELSWEH LM
BEIRKBEEMER  RFAEE
SRR R BEBREEBE - 1L
BEHFARMREFEERM - <
ERAERERMEE  KELENE
SR -
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RELATIONSHIP WITH KEY PARTIES

The success of the Group also depends on the support from key
parties which comprise customers, suppliers, employees and
shareholders.

Customers

The Group's principal customers comprise the government, NGOs
and private developers. The Group has well established operational
and industry experience in foundation, civil engineering and general
building work, which enables the Group to complete all our projects
on schedule. Recognition from our sound track records, the Group
has secured various sizeable new projects from public and private
sectors. Our reputation and high standard of quality work enable
the Group and the customers to achieve their profitability and
sustainable growth.

Suppliers

Good relationship with suppliers constitutes one of the essential
elements of the Group’s success. To achieve positive business
growth, the Group maintains close relationship with its suppliers in
order to create a win-win situation so that suppliers and the Group
can have a vertical cooperation for reaching both of the business

goals.

Employees

The Group focuses on the talents of our employees as our most
valuable asset and provides a harmonious and professional working
environment with a variety of training programmes to our
employees for career advancement. The key objective of our human
resource management is to recognise and reward performing staff
by providing competitive remuneration packages and implementing
system with appropriate
incentives, namely equal promotion opportunity.

an effective performance appraisal

Shareholders

The principal goal of the Group is to maximise the return to the
shareholders of the Company. The Group will focus on our core
business and explore attractive
achieving sustainable profit growth and rewarding the shareholders
with stable dividend payouts taking into account the business
development needs and financial health of the Group.

investment opportunities for

HEEREHGHEE
AREORDTEREETEEMSOXF -
BEEF - fER  RARRE

ER

AEENTEZTFPBEBUN - JEBUFAER K
AANERE AKEEME  TATER—
REFTIRAGEEZEREALR &N
SEERSTEKMAFEER - AKENRLT
FRLBEYEE  RASEREZERT
LHBHMALIER - HPINBERRRE
MEBETR FAKEREFHERSAN
BN BERAKELER -

e
HEEEENREBRERIDASENRNESR
Z—e REEBRBREEER AEEEHEE
BERTIEE BTUEEARESIA—F
EREBES HELRBP@E -

EE
AEBEREENARAREENEE - A&
BRESREMBEXNIFERE KRBT
FIIFAIG 8 BB REEREE - RFAN
BEREENTIEZEAREREBREHARFN
W%Mﬁ@ EITHEMNRRIZGE - #
NITE RETRHTIFEARE  LTH
ﬁﬁi&@ﬁ

Bz =
AEBETRERTIRARABRRAERK
E¥ AKEBBEINROLER 28 RE
BREABRSIIORERS  BRUFELN
BR YREEAEENEBERFTEZLY
Bk REBENKEXDERRE -



MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Sales to the Group’s 5 largest customers accounted for
approximately 89.90% (31 March 2022: 83.78%) of the total sales
for the Year and sales to the largest customer included therein
amounted to approximately 69.40% (31 March 2022: 51.90%).
Purchases from the Group’s 5 largest suppliers accounted for
approximately 38.18% (31 March 2022: 40.28%) of the total
purchases for the Year and purchases from the largest supplier
included therein amounted to approximately 12.18% (31 March
2022: 24.12%).

To the best knowledge of the Directors, neither the Directors, their
close associates, nor any shareholders, who owned more than 5%
of the Company’s issued voting shares, had any interests in any of
the Group's five largest customers or suppliers during the Year.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss on page 88 and
accompanying notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

The Board does not recommend a payment of a final dividend to
the shareholders for the year ended 31 March 2023 (2022: nil).

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

No charitable and other donations was made by the Group during
the Year (2022: HK$100,000).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in share capital of the Company during the

Year are set out in note 31 to the Consolidated Financial

Statements.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed above and in this annual report, no equity-linked
agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing shares or
that require the Company to enter into any agreements that will or
may result in the Company issuing shares were entered into by the
Company during the Year or subsisted at the end of the Year.

20236 FHR AXEE(ER)BRATA

REPORT OF DIRECTORS

FEERRIMER

HAEBES KR PETHHENIAFERE
EFMW89.90% (202243 A31H :
83.78%)  MEFHBEARFPETHIHEEA]
#491569.40% (202243 A31H : 51.90%) °
MRS E S K ERETHRBOGAFEEE
KB EA38.18% (202243 A318 -
40.28%) ' ME R M A EEITHRE
BII#IM512.18% (20223 A31H :24.12%) ©

BEEMAMN BEES WNENETHE
AR KRR EE5%C EITRARRERND
MEMBRRAFERAEERLREP M
JET R A (A A

ARSI
AEEAFEOEENNBSANGA R
255 B 5 2 B A SR AR Y 2 -

BEEgTEHEMBREIRMNEZ2023F3A31
BItFEERHRIPIE (2022F : &) -

EEER
AREBRTEERELENESREMBR
(20224 : 100,000 7T) °

Bz 7
ARARARFEENBHRHBERNEA
BT BRI 3T -

B 5= #Hh &5 thh 5

B EXRAFRHABREESN - KARRKE
B AT A AR T A
BERTEEBADDEITRE XREA
ARFIAAEE R G BA D AR
R 1 B 15 3% 10 TR S 93 1 1

43



44

NEW CONCEPTS HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023

REPORT OF DIRECTORS
EFEWS

RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Group during the Year are
set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2023, the Company does not have reserves
available for distribution, subject to the compliance with the
Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) of the Cayman Islands and Company’s articles of association
(the "Articles of Association”) (31 March 2022: nil).

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company's listed securities during the Year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for the pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association, or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENT OR CONTRACTS

No Director or any entity connected with a Director was materially
interested, either directly or indirectly, in any transaction,
arrangement or contract of significance to the business of the
Group to which the Company, or any of its subsidiaries was a party
during the Year or the end of the Year.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions undertaken in the normal
course of business are provided under note 41 to the consolidated
financial statements of this annual report. The Board confirmed that
none of those related party transactions constitute a connected
transaction or a continuing connected transaction as required to be
disclosed under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption available
to shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s
securities.

fit 4
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DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

The Directors who held office during the Year and up to the date
of this report are:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Zhu Yongjun (Chairman of the Board)
Mr. Pan Yimin
Mr. Lee Tsi Fun Nicholas

Non-executive Directors.

Mr. Sui Guangyi (Honorary Chairman)
Dr. Ge Xiaolin
Dr. Zhang Lihui

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Lo Chun Chiu, Adrian
Dr. Tong Ka Lok
Mr. Choy Wai Shek, Raymond, MH, JP

Each of the executive Directors and the non-executive Director has
entered into a service contract with the Company or a subsidiary of
initial term of 3 years. Each of the
independent non-executive Directors has also entered into a service

the Company for an

contract with the Company for an initial term of 2 years. The
aforesaid service contracts may be terminated by not less than 3
months’ notice in writing served by either party on the other. All
Directors shall be subject to retirement by rotation and re-election
at an annual general meeting at least once every 3 years.

In accordance with Article 108(a) of the Articles of Association, at
each annual general meeting one-third of the Directors for the time
being shall retire from office by rotation. In accordance with Article
112 of the Articles of Association, any director appointed by the
Board to fill a casual vacancy during the Year shall hold office until
the first general meeting of the Company after his appointment and
be subject to re-election at such meeting.
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Mr. Pan Yimin, Mr. Lee Tsi Fun Nicholas and Dr. Ge Xiaolin shall
retire from office by rotation at the AGM to be held on 15 August
2023 108(a) of the Articles of
Association.

in accordance with Article

Save as disclosed above, no Director proposed for re-election at the
AGM has a service contract which is not determinable by the
Company or any of its subsidiaries within 1 year without payment
of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Confirmation of Independence of Independent Non-
executive Directors

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has made an
annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules which have been received by the Company. The
Company is of the view that all independent non-executive Directors
meet the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules and are independent in accordance with the terms of
the guidelines during the Year.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of the Directors and senior management of
the Group as at the date of this report are disclosed in the section
headed
Management on pages 28 to 32 of this annual report. Save as
disclosed in the aforesaid section, the Directors (a) have not held
other directorships in public companies, the securities of which are
listed on any securities market in Hong Kong or overseas, in the last
3 years; (b) do not hold any other positions in the Group; and (c)
do not have any other relationships with any Directors, senior
management or substantial or controlling shareholders of the
Company.

“Biographical Details of the Directors and Senior
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UPDATE ON DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

There is no other information required to be disclosed pursuant to
Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND 5 HIGHEST

PAID INDIVIDUALS

The Directors’ emoluments are determined by the Board with
reference to the duties, responsibilities and performance of the
Directors and the results of the Group.

Details of the Directors’ emoluments and the 5 highest paid
individuals are set out in notes 10 and 11 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

A remuneration committee was set up by the Board to develop the
Group’s emolument policy and structure for remuneration of the
Directors and senior management of the Group, having regard to
the Group’s operating
directors and senior management and comparable market practices.

results, individual performance of the

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures

Save as disclosed under the paragraphs headed “Directors’ and
Chief Executives’ Interests or Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures” and in this annual report relating to the
share option scheme adopted by the Company, at no time during
the Year was the Company, its parent company, any of its
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to
enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of an acquisition
of shares in, or underlying shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the Year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to Article 191 of the Articles of Association, the Directors,
Managing Directors, alternate Directors, auditors, secretary and other
officers for the time being of the Company acting in relation to any
of the affairs of the Company shall be indemnified and secured
harmless out of the assets of the Company from and against all
actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which they or
any of them shall or may incur or sustain by reason of any act
done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their
duty or supposed duty in their respective offices. Such provision was
in force during the Year and remained in force as of the date of
this report. In addition, the Company has also maintained Directors
and officers liability insurance during the Year.

COMPETITION AND CONFLICT OF INTERESTS
Saved and except of interests in the Group, none of the Directors or
substantial shareholders of the Company or any of their respective
associates has engaged in any business that competes or may
compete with the business of the Group or has any other conflict of
interests with the Group during the Year.

5 YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last 5 financial years is set out on page 236. Such
summary does not form part of the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to the written resolutions passed by the sole shareholder
of the Company on 26 August 2014, the Company has conditionally
adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”).

Purpose of the Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to attract and retain the
best available personnel, to provide additional
employees (full-time and part-time), directors, consultants, advisors,
distributors, contractors, suppliers, agents, business
partners or service providers of the Group and to promote the
success of the business of the Group.

incentive to
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Participants under the Share Option Scheme and basis of
eligibility

The Board may, at its absolute discretion and on such terms as it
may think fit, grant any employee (full-time or part-time), director,
consultant or advisor of the Group, or any substantial shareholder
of the Group, or any distributor, contractor, supplier, agent,
customer, business partner or service provider of the Group, options
to subscribe at a price calculated in accordance with paragraphs (i)
to (iii) below for such number of Shares as it may determine in
accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme.

The basis of eligibility of any participant to the grant of any option
shall be determined by the Board (or as the case may be, the
independent non-executive Directors) from time to time on the basis
of his contribution or potential contribution to the development and
growth of the Group.

Principal terms of the Share Option Scheme
The principal terms of the Share Option Scheme are summarised as
follows:

The Share Option Scheme was adopted for a period of 10 years
commencing from 26 August 2014 and will remain in force until
25 August 2024 unless terminated earlier by the shareholders of the
Company in general meeting. The Company may by resolution in
general meeting or the Board may at any time terminate the
operation of the Share Option Scheme and in such event no further
options will be offered but options granted prior to such
termination shall continue to be valid and exercisable in accordance
with the provisions of the Share Option Scheme.
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In the extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on
30 May 2023 after the end of the Year, the Share Option Scheme
was terminated and a new share option scheme of the Company
has been adopted (the “2023 Share Option Scheme”). For details of
the 2023 Share Option Scheme, please refer to the circular of the
Company dated 8 May 2023. Since 30 May 2023 up to the date of
this report, no option has been granted under the 2023 Share
Option Scheme.

The subscription price of a share in respect of any particular option
granted under the Share Option Scheme shall be a price solely
determined by the Board and notified to a participant and shall be
at least the higher of:

(i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet on the date of grant of the option,
which must be a business day;

(i) the average of the closing prices of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the 5 business
days immediately preceding the date of grant of the option;
and

(iii)  the nominal value of a share on the date of grant of the option.

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within seven
days inclusive of the day on which such offer was made. The
amount payable by the grantee of an option to our Company on
acceptance of the offer for the grant of an option is HK$1.

The 10% limit as mentioned above was refreshed at the annual
general meeting of the Company dated 25 September 2017 and the
annual general meeting of the Company dated 28 March 2019. As
at the date of this report, the total number of Shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company is 572,900,134 Shares.

On 19 April 2021, the Company granted 46,492,000 options to
certain Directors, employees, and a consultant under the Share
Option Scheme on 16,892,000 options were vested immediately on
such date of grant; 14,800,000 options will be vested during 1 year
after such date of grant, and the remaining 14,800,000 options will
be vested during 2 years after such date of grant. The validity
period for the first and second batch of options will be 2 years
from their respective vesting dates; and the validity period for the
third batch of options is one year from the vesting date. The
exercise price of each option is HK$0.42 per share.

RAFEHRE AR RQFR20235F5H30
BOTZREFRRE L BRETEEE
B IE AR A A TR IR A ET 2] ([20234F /8
RAERTE])) B IR - 2023 F BE AR ST 5
BELHE A QR HE A2023F5A80 2 @
B o 20235 H30H & A4 B HI - 2023
FRERERT S WARFZ LM ERE -

R BB I ET 81 2 1R W A0 (E {7 45 € I8 I
I RHBRNRBEE BRATEHESTEE
EABMSEENER IHELB/THE
HRHREE

(i) H* LA R MERMBBONER LB
EER(AREXER)MEME

%F

iy BIABHBERABBOREER
HERES BMSELCEANFHK
mE: &

(i) REBREZSENROEE-

REBERENENARARELERENA
H(BREZB) B ERAER - BEHEAR
ABRERBRHBREZOELSHER
BRAARBRZMET -

EXATHt A 10% £ PR B R A QB FE201749
ABEBRITHRRAFRAE RRAQFE
201956F3HA28H BT REAFAE L F
o RNAmEBH  RBEERESSIRARD
&) £ fo] EL 4 8 AR b 51 B4R S A9 2 36 R AR
EOEMmMAT FRETOHORD LBHA
572,900, 134f% °

MR2021F47198 » AR AR BB EET &
mMEFEET EEER—FZTEBEBRY
46,492,00017 B8 P& # + 16,892,00017 i A% 4
ERZE L B AR B ¢ 14,800,0001)
RGN ZIELBBRBIFARE A&
14,800,00017 fB AR 7 #% 7£ 52 % (1 A HAig M &

BB %Hﬁt&%ﬁﬁtﬁ%ﬂx%ﬂﬁm%Qimﬁ'
BEfiest BE2E  F3MBEREEHEE
BB AT ERENTER %tﬂx
0.42/%71:"



On 13 December 2022, the Company granted 10,800,000 options
to certain Director and employees. The exercise price is HK$0.50 per
share. 2,700,000 options will be vested and exercisable immediately
on the date of grant. The other 8,100,000 options will be subject to
fulfillment of various performance targets in relation to the Group
within the time periods as determined by the Board and specified in
the respective letters of grant to the corresponding grantee. Out of
these 8,100,000 options, 6,700,000 options will be vested subject
to the respective dates of achieving the relevant performance
targets for such grantees but in any case not later than 31
December 2023; the remaining 1,400,000 options will be vested
subject to the respective dates of achieving the relevant
performance targets for such grantees but in any case not later
than 31 July 2024.

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of options granted to any participant (including both exercised and
outstanding options) under the Share Option Scheme, in any
12-month period up to the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of
the Shares in issue. Any further grant of options in excess of such
limit must be separately approved by Shareholders in general
meeting with such grantee and his associates abstaining from
voting.

Any grant of an option to a Director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of our Company (or any of their respective associates)
must be approved by the independent non-executive Directors
(excluding any independent non-executive Director) who is the
grantee of the option).

Where any grant of options to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive Director (or any of their respective
associates) will result in the total number of Shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of all options already granted and to be
granted to such person under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option schemes of our Company (including options
exercised, cancelled and outstanding) in any 12-month period up to
and including the date of grant:

(i) representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the Shares in issue;
and

(i)~ having an aggregate value, based on the closing price of the
Shares at the date of each grant, in excess of HK$5 million,

such further grant of options is required to be approved by
shareholders at a general meeting of the Company, with voting to
be taken by way of poll.
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Details of movement of the share options granted under the Share
Option Scheme during the Year are set out as follows:

15 0 O S 095 B AR A R A
EHHBERIIOT :

Number of options

BREYE
Exercise  Outstanding Outstanding
Participants Date of grant  Vesting period Exercisable period price  at 1.4.2021 Granted  Exercised Lapsed  at 31.3.2022
#2021 #20225
4A1H 3H31H
ELE =R HEH T8 TR 8 A7 1€ 2R BT EEH el K 17
Directors
=
Mr. Pan Yimin 19.4.2021 Vest upon date of 19.4.2021-18.4.2023 0.42 500,000 — (500,000) — —
BHRREE grant
BRELASHGE
19.4.2022-18.4.2024  19.4.2022-18.4.2024 0.42 1,500,000 — — — 1,500,000
19.4.2023-18.4.2024  19.4.2024-18.4.2024 0.42 1,500,000 — — — 1,500,000
13.12.2022 Vest upon date of 13.12.2022-12.12.2024 0.50 — 1,100,000 — — 1,100,000
grant
ERRERHER
Mr. Lee Tsi Fun Nicholas ~ 19.4.2021 Vest upon date of 19.4.2021-18.4.2023 0.42 2,000,000 — — — 2,000,000
THAEE grant
BRELASHGE
19.4.2022-18.4.2024  19.4.2022-18.4.2024 0.42 1,500,000 — — — 1,500,000
19.4.2023-18.4.2024  19.4.2024-18.4.2024 0.42 1,500,000 — — — 1,500,000
Dr. Ge Xiaolin 19.4.2021 Vest upon date of 19.4.2021-18.4.2023 0.42 500,000 — (500,000) — —
BRHEEL grant
BRELASHGE
Dr. Zhang Lihui 19.4.2021 Vest upon date of 19.4.2021-18.4.2023 0.42 500,000 — (500,000) — —
RuUBEL grant
BERELASNEE
Mr. Lo Chun Chiu 19.4.2021 Vest upon date of 19.4.2021-18.4.2023 0.42 500,000 = e — 500,000
BREELE grant
ERREPHER
Dr. Tong Ka Lok 19.4.2021 Vest upon date of 19.4.2021-18.4.2023 0.42 500,000 — — — 500,000
EREEL grant
BRELASHGEE
Mr. Choy Wai Shek 19.4.2021 Vest upon date of 19.4.2021-18.4.2023 0.42 500,000 — (500,000) — —
Raymond MH, JP grant
BEREE BERELASHEE
#EPE A FHL
Employees 19.4.2021 Vest upon date of 19.4.2021-18.4.2023 0.42 3,048,000 — (600,000)  (200,000) 2,248,000
grant
ERREBHER
19.4.2022-18.4.2024  19.4.2022-18.4.2024 0.42 9,600,000 == — (500,000 9,100,000
19.4.2023-18.4.2024  19.4.2024-18.4.2024 0.42 9,600,000 — — (500,000 9,100,000
13.12.2022 Vest upon date of 13.12.2022-12.12.2024 0.50 — 1,600,000 = — 1,600,000
grant
ERREPHER
13.12.2022 Note 1 0.50 — 6,700,000 — — 6,700,000
(ozal
13.12.2022 Note 2 0.50 — 1,400,000 — — 1,400,000
Wi &2
Consultant 19.4.2021 Vest upon date of 19.4.2021-18.4.2023 0.42 400,000 — (400,000) — —
B grant
BERELASHEE
33,648,000 10,800,000  (3,000,000) (1,200,000 40,248,000




Notes:

1 The exercise of the options is subject to certain conditions that must be
achieved by the grantees. The options shall be vested in any case not later
than 31 December 2023 with validity period of 2 years from the respective
vesting dates.

2 The exercise of the options is subject to certain conditions that must be
achieved by the grantees. The options shall be vested in any case not later
than 31 July 2024 with validity period of 2 years from the respective
vesting dates.

Apart from the aforesaid Share Option Scheme and the 2023 Share
Option Scheme, at no time during the Year and up to the date of
this report the Company or any associated corporation was a party
to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate, and none of the Directors,
or their spouses or children under the age 18, had any right to
subscribe for the shares in, or debentures of, the Company, or had
exercised any such rights.

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests or Short Positions
in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures

As at 31 March 2023, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meanings of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong
Kong) (the “SFO")) which were notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests or short positions which any such director or
chief executive is taken or deemed to have under such provision of
the SFO) or which were required pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO, to be entered in the register of members of the Company, or
which were required, pursuant to standard of dealings by Directors
as referred to the Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange were as follows:
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(i) Interests in the Company

() RELEHEZ

Interests in ordinary shares % of the

REBEROER Total Total Company's

interests in  interests in issued

Personal Family Corporate ordinary  underlying Aggregate voting

Name of directors interests interests interests shares shares interests shares

EEAF

EBTR

REBERE  REMRSR RRERG

BEME 1\ #E 25 Rik#ER AT ER EHAE OESEH W 4 Et FERA

Mr. Zhu Yongjun 5,400,000 — 78,656,000 84,056,000 — 84,056,000 5.57%
REERE

Mr. Pan Yimin 500,000 — — 500,000 4,100,000 4,600,000 0.30%
EHR AL

Mr. Lee Tsi Fun Nicholas — — — — 5,000,000 5,000,000 0.33%
FHEN T

Mr. Sui Guangyi 16,204,000 — — 16,204,000 — 16,204,000 1.07%
EEELE

Dr. Ge Xiaolin 500,000 — — 500,000 — 500,000 0.03%
BR#EL

Dr. Zhang Lihui 596,000 — — 596,000 — 596,000 0.03%
RuEEL

Mr. Lo Chun Chiu — — — — 500,000 500,000 0.03%
BEBEE

Dr. Tong Ka Lok 480,000 — — 480,000 500,000 980,000 0.06%
I

Mr. Choy Wai Shek Raymond 1,200,000 — — 1,200,000 — 1,200,000 0.07%
MH, JP

BERREE
KEEE A F#H1
Note: Bt & -
1. The 77,000,000 shares are beneficially held by Jumbo Grand i 77,000,000 R AAJumbo

Enterprise Development Limited (“Jumbo Grand”) and 1,656,000
shares are beneficially by Excellent Point Asia Limited (“Excellent
Point”). Mr. Zhu Yongjun owns 100% of the issued voting shares
of Jumbo Grand and Excellent Point. Mr. Zhu Yongjun is deemed or
taken to be interested in all the shares which are beneficially
owned by Jumbo Grand for the purpose of the SFO. Mr. Zhu
Yongjun is the Chairman of the Board and an executive Director of
the Company.

GrandEnterprise Development Limited
(Mumbo Grand) E#=#H & M#&
1,656,000 & 5 Al BB Excellent
PointAsia Limited ([Excellent Point]) &
wHA o ABE LA A Iumbo Grand
K Excellent Point#)100% B 217 1% 2=
R - REBEHFRBAKEOITmE - KB
B SR A E ER Jumbo Grand
BExBANMEROTPHEEEZ - KB
BERERRNARETEEIERIMTES -
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(i) REHLEEEZ

(ii) Interests in the associated corporation

% of the issued
voting shares of

Name of directors/ Name of associated No. of associate
chief executive corporation Capacity/Nature shares held corporation
15 1EE = E
ES EHITBAS BE CRITERRE
%2 HEER 2 56 HE % 5 8 B B B E 7L
Zhu Yongjun Jumbo Grand Interest in controlled 10,000 100%
corporation
KBEE Jumbo Grand 1A E R
Zhu Yongjun Excellent Point Interest in controlled 50,000 100%
corporation
KBE Excellent Point A E R
Chu Shu Cheong Prosper Power Interest In controlled 75 75%

corporation
KB E & Bl XA E
Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2023 none of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company had any other
interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or
short positions which they were taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO), or which were required,

B b S PT H#: §E & SN - 1202353 A31
H ARRIEERESTTRABHE
RARARREEBEZE(ERRES
K& GBI SEXVER) AT & 1D - 48
RN IESFTEEREESRBE
EHIEXVERE T R8N EE ME A QA
RERE AR EMmERIAR (B
EREZEHFRBEGRMNBREEKES

pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein, or which were required, pursuant
to the Listing Rules relating to the required standard of
dealings by the directors to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange.
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Substantial Shareholder’s Interests and/or Short Position in
Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company

So far as is known to the Directors, as at 31 March 2023, the
following person (not being a Director or chief executive of the
Company) who had interests or short positions in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed
to the Company under provision of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO, or who is directly or
indirectly interested in 5% or more of any class of issued shares
carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of
any member of the Group:

Long positions in the shares of the Company

EERFENR A AT R K8 FE % 6 8 1
nREKE

BE S AT R2023F3A318  TAIA L
(WIHARRREFHERTRAB)NAR
ABRMREEROTHEREESLBE
{6 15) EEXVER 552 35 S0 &Y & LB B A R A
WENEZIAR  REABREESRBE
Bl E33615 N A RIZATFE /B #
AR REBEIMEREEWEERN TR
FRBERTEREBETRKE REMBRE
RE ERENTMER D ZEITRM5%E
Rk

RELXGRBITFE
Approximate

percentage of
Number of shareholdings in

Name of shareholders Capacity shares held the Company
EEATIREY
IR & 18 8 HAEROEE Mmya it
Hong Kong Toprich Investment Limited (Note 1) Beneficial owner 156,740,000 10.39%
BEARESREARAA (M EmEAA
Yuan Heng Group International Co., Limited Beneficial owner 138,000,000 9.07%
(Note 2)
TTEEBRER AR (FE2) ExnEAA
TFEEE(RINDEEBER AR (Note 2)  Interest in a controlled 138,000,000 9.07%
corporation
TEREEERIDEBER AR (FF2) XA EER
Mr. Lin Jiakuang (Note 2) Interest in a controlled 138,000,000 9.07%
corporation
MK E & & (FtiE2) YL EER
Jumbo Grand (Note 3) Beneficial owner 77,000,000 5.10%
Jumbo Grand (Fff 3£3) ExnEEA
Prosper Power Group Ltd (“Prosper Power”) Beneficial owner 76,500,000 5.07%
(Note 4)
EBREBBRAE (AR (HE4) ExnEEA
Mr. Chu Shu Cheong (Note 4) Interest in a controlled 76,500,000 5.07%

Riat 8 5k & (K axd)

corporation

S AEHDE B &
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Approximate
percentage of
Number of shareholdings in

Name of shareholders Capacity shares held the Company
EERATRED
% R & 18 5 &% BERGSE wmuoaatt
Kingston Finance Limited (Notes 4 and 5) Person having a security 76,500,000 5.07%
interest in shares
ML BEERADF (M E4R5) BEERNDEREROAL
Ample Cheer Limited (Notes 4 and 5) Interest in a controlled 76,500,000 5.07%
corporation
Ample Cheer Limited (Fif 754 55) A 5 B R
Chu Yuet Wah (Notes 4 and 5) Interest in a controlled 76,500,000 5.07%
corporation
= A% (M4 R5) A E R
Notes: B 5 -
1. Hong Kong Toprich Investment Limited is indirectly wholly-owned by China 1. BEREHEREERATIHPEREESARAD
Investment Fund Company Limited, a company incorporated in the Cayman RIfE2EHE  REARFAESESEMKR T
Islands with limited liability with its shares listed on the Stock Exchange BWBERARE - HRGNBERZET £ (RS :
(Stock code: 612). 612) °
2. The 138,000,000 shares are beneficially owned by Yuan Heng Group 2. 138,000,000 &AL F BB AR QA
International Co., Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Jt = 1 % % 12 (R BEnllh HATTOEER(RIDEEEAR
) EEAH R A A], which is wholly-owned by Mr. Lin Jiakuang. Mr. Lin RRAIZZEMBAR  ZARBENRELES
Jiakuang is deemed to be in all interested in all the shares beneficially BHEA MREEEERAELFEEEERE
owned by Yuan Heng Group International Co., Limited. RARERBEANMBROPEE I ER -
3. Jumbo Grand is wholly-owned by Mr. Zhu Yongjun who is the Chairman of 3. Jumbo Grand B ABE L (BARRIEEEE
the Board and an executive Director of the Company. Accordingly, Mr. Zhu ERWITESR) 2EHAF - At - RESRHE
Yongjun is deemed to be interested in the 77,000,000 shares held by 1AM S+ KBE & EWR AR IumboGrand
Jumbo Grand for the purpose of the SFO. B #977,000,000 0% % 17 ¥ A #e o o
4. The 76,500,000 shares are beneficially owned by Prosper Power Group Ltd 4. 76,500,000k R HEHEBEBAERAA ([
("Prosper Power”) which is owned as to 75% by Mr. Chu Shu Cheong. B E=lE MEBBAHEXEREET%
Mr. Chu Shu Cheong is deemed or taken to be interested in all the shares B KSR EWBRANEERERERE
which are beneficially owned by Prosper Power. Mr. Chu Shu Cheong is BHFEROPHEERERZ - REEXETRE
also a director of Prosper Power. BEVESE o
5. The 76,500,000 shares are beneficially owned by Prosper Power and had 5. 76,500,000k R ERE=HER  WEH

been pledged to Kingston Finance Limited as pledgee to secure a loan
granted to Prosper Power. Kingston Finance Limited is wholly-owned by
Ample Cheer Limited, which is in turn owned as to 80% by Best Forth
Limited, which is wholly-owned by Ms. Chu Yuet Wah. Accordingly, Ample
Cheer Limited and Ms. Chu Yuet Wah are deemed to be interested in all
shares held by Kingston Finance Limited.

BTEFEPBAERAR HERETA) - LR
BEBEEN—SER - 2FEHBERDA
fiAmple Cheer Limited® & # A& © MAmple
Cheer Limited B3 2 A 2 + 2 B ¥ 5 H)Best
Forth Limited# H580% 4 25 ° A It * Ample
Cheer Limited R F AERZTHHERANEFIE
MBAERRBFENMBERNPEGER -
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Save as disclosed under the sections headed “Directors’ and Chief
Executives’ Interests or Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures” and
Short Position in Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company”
above, as at 31 March 2023, no other person was individually and/
or collectively entitled to exercise or control the exercise of 5% or
more of the voting power at general meeting of the Company and
was able, as a practical matter,
management of the Company.

“Substantial Shareholder’s Interests and/or

to direct or influence the

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of the report,
the Company has maintained the prescribed public float under the
Listing Rules during the Year.

CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS
The register of members of the Company will be closed from
10 August 2023 to 15 August 2023 (both days inclusive), during
which period no transfers of shares will be registered. To determine
the entitlement to attend and vote at the AGM of the Company, all
transfer document, accompanied by the relevant share certificates,
must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong
Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at 17th Floor, Far East
Finance Centre, No. 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong for registration
not later than 4:30 p.m. on 9 August 2023.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Save as disclosed under the sections headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis” above, there is no other significant event
after the Reporting Period of the Group.

BREXEERERITBAEBREY  HE
BHOREFNEZKABIRIEERER
KRB RBBROOES R, 8XE ]
W ED BT I R & Sh 0 R20234F3A318 - i E
Hib AR K8 E A T
TEARABRRARNE5%LIA KR FRE -
BEEELETRUTERRAERE -

ABFHRENTEEE
ERAD AT ARG ER R E EA
MRAREEH ARRARAEEN—E
W ETRAF AT ARKEBE -

EEmnERMERERTE
AR A R2023F8 A10H Z=2023F8A15
HEEEREMRX)EEREROBP ZL
FE HEBTERERNDBEERD - A
EHEAQNGBRRBAFRAELRE ERR
R TEBP XHEREERE N ER
EP2023F8A9H T F4K309 X Bl AR A
NEBRNDBEFELSIREEEESERLAE
AR (Mt AEBSEREISHRES A
DMTHE)  NERBERFE -

HMEHEFEIE

B BRI — B AR E
S ARERBEHEY BB EAALRE
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AUDITOR

BDO Limited will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment at the forthcoming AGM. A resolution to re-appoint
BDO Limited, the retiring auditor, as auditor of the Company is to
be proposed at the forthcoming AGM of the Company.

By order of the Board
New Concepts Holdings Limited

Zhu Yongjun
Chairman and Executive Director
Hong Kong, 21 June 2023
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board believes that good corporate governance is one of the
areas leading to the success of the Company and balancing the
interests of shareholders, customers and employees, and the Board
is devoted to ongoing enhancement of the efficiency and
effectiveness of such principles and practices.

The Company has adopted the compliance manual which sets out
the minimum standard of good practices concerning the general
management responsibilities of the Board with which the Company
and the Directors shall comply and which contains, among other
things, the code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code (the
“CG Code") as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules as its
own code of corporate governance.

The Board considers that the Company has complied with the code
provisions set out in the CG Code during the Year.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition and Responsibilities

As at 31 March 2023, the Board comprises 9 directors (“Directors”),
comprising 3 executive Directors, 3 non-executive Directors and
three independent non-executive Directors. The composition of the
Board throughout the Year is as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Zhu Yongjun (Chairman of the Board)
Mr. Pan Yimin

Mr. Lee Tsi Fun Nicholas

Non-executive Directors.

Mr. Sui Guangyi (Honorary Chairman)
Dr. Ge Xiaolin
Dr. Zhang Lihui

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Lo Chun Chiu, Adrian

Dr. Tong Ka Lok
Mr. Choy Wai Shek, Raymond, MH, JP

EXREGEH

EFEMAE RINCEEREIALAT
BRRD L FERE - EFREAS i
MBEZ— MEFERNBERAZER
B 5 18 1) ) 0 2R R i o

ARBEERA—DARTM HINEHEES
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EEE
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BEEEAE(ZEETE)
Emsgt

RIS L+
BUFHTEE
BIEBEE

EELtiEt
BEQLE #8289z L TFHL



The biographical details and responsibilities of the Directors as well
as the senior management are set out in the section “Biographical
Details of the Directors and Senior Management” on pages 28 to
32.

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Biographical Details of the
Directors and Senior Management” to this annual report, the
Directors have no other financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationships with each other.

The Board is accountable to shareholders for the Company’s
performance and activities. While the Board is primarily overseeing
and managing the Company’s affairs, the Chairman of the Board
provides leadership to the Board in carrying out its duties. The
executive Directors and the senior management of the Company are
delegated with responsibilities in the day-to-day management of the
Company and make operational and business decisions within the
control of and delegation framework of the Company. The
independent non- executive Directors contribute valuable views and

proposals for the Board’s deliberation and decisions.

The Company has throughout the Year met the requirements of the
Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least 3 independent
non-executive Directors with at least one of them possessing
appropriate professional
financial management expertise.

qualifications, accounting or related

At all times during the Year, the independent non-executive
Directors represent at least one-third of the Board.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has submitted a
written statement to the Stock Exchange confirming their
independence and has undertaken to inform the Stock Exchange as
soon as practicable if there is any subsequent change of
circumstances which may affect their independence prior to their
respective appointment. The Company has also received a written
confirmation from each of the independent non-executive Directors
in respect of their independence for the Year. The Board considers
that all independent non-executive Directors are being considered to
be independent with reference to the factors stated in the Listing
Rules during the Year.
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Other matters reserved for the Board include consideration of
dividend policy, approval of major investments, maintenance of an
adequate system of internal controls and review of the corporate
governance practices of the Group. Daily operations and
administration are delegated to management teams.

Procedure for Seeking Independent Professional Advice by
Directors

The Company has agreed to provide separate independent
professional advice and sufficient resources to Directors and all
Board Committees to assist them to discharge their duties. The
Company will consider to develop a written procedure to enable
Directors, and members of all Board Committees upon reasonable
request, to seek and be provided with independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expense.

The Company has subscribed an insurance policy with an aim to
indemnify its Directors from any losses, damages, liabilities and
expenses arising from, including but not limited to, any proceedings
brought against them during the performance of their duties
pursuant to their respective services agreements entered into with
the Company.

Board Meetings

The Board is scheduled to meet regularly at least 4 times a year at
approximately quarterly intervals, to discuss the overall strategy as
well as the operational and financial performance of the Company.
Other Board meetings have been held during the Year for approving
the acquisitions of business, grant of share options, subscription and
issue of shares and change of Directors of the Company, etc. Such
Board meetings involve the active participation, either in person or
through other electronic means of communication, of a majority of
Directors. The Directors make every effort to contribute to the
formulation of policy, decision-making and the development of the
Group's business.
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During the Year, a total of 8 Board meetings were held. Various
meetings of the remuneration committee, nomination committee
and audit committee have also been held. The Chairman has had a
meeting with independent non-executive Directors without the
presence of the executive Directors and non-executive Directors.

Directors” Attendance at the Board/Board Committee/General
Meetings

Below are details of all Directors’ attendance at the Board and
Board committee meetings, annual and extraordinary general
meetings, held during the Year:
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Audit  Nomination Remuneration Annual Extraordinary
Board  Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee General General
Name of Director Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
EEE® ENZEE REZEE Fizsg RERAE BREH
ESita ik EE B ik Xg Xg
Executive Directors: HITEE:
Mr. Zhu Yongjun REERHE 88 NATEA 7" NATER 10 11
Mr. Pan Yimin BHRRELE 88  NATER NATER NATER 101 11
Mr. Lee Tsi Fun Nicholas EXE 88  NATEA  NANER N 0 111
Non-executive Directors: FHITEE:
Mr. Sui Guangyi BEEEAE 88 NATEAR NATER NATER  NATER 111
Dr. Ge Xiaolin ERHEL 8%  NATER NATER NATER 0 111
Dr. Zhang Lihui RUBET 8% NATER NATEA  NATER 0 1
Independent Non-executive Directors: BUHATEE:
Mr. Lo Chun Chiu, Adrian FRBEE 8/8 33 17 N 01 0
Dr. Tong Ka Lok Rt 8/8 33 17 i i 11
Mr. Choy Wai Shek, Raymond, MH, /P BEREL £85F 8/8 33 17 i 1 1

AF4L
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Appropriate notices are given to all Directors in advance for
attending regular and other board or board committee meetings.
Meeting agendas and other relevant information are provided to the
Directors in advance of board or board committee meetings. All
Directors are consulted to include additional matters in the agenda

for such meetings.

Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary with a view to ensuring that board procedures, and all
applicable rules and regulations, are followed.

Both draft and final versions of the minutes will be sent to all
Directors for their comment and records. Minutes of board and
board committee meetings are kept by the Company Secretary and
such minutes are open for inspection at any reasonable time on
reasonable prior notice by any Director.

All directors are also entitled to have access to board papers and
related materials. These papers and related materials are in a form
and quality sufficient to enable the board to make informed
decisions on matters placed before it. Queries raised by directors
shall receive a prompt and full response by the management.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal
The aforesaid service contracts may be terminated by not less than
3 month’s notice in writing served by either party on the other.

In accordance with the articles of association of the Company, at
each annual general meeting of the Company, one-third of the
Directors for the time being shall retire from office by rotation
provided that every Director (including those appointed for a
specific term) shall be subject to retirement at an annual general
meeting of the Company, at least once every 3 years. Such retiring
Directors shall be eligible for re-election at the annual general
meeting.
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The Board shall have power from time to time and at any time to
appoint any person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy or as
an additional Director but so that the number of Directors so
appointed shall not exceed the maximum number determined from
time to time by the shareholders of the Company in general
meeting. Any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual
vacancy shall hold office only until the first general meeting of the
Company after his appointment and be subject to re-election at
such meeting. Any Director appointed by the Board as an addition
to the existing Board shall hold office only until the next following
annual general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible
for re-election.

Confirmation of Independence

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has made an
annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all independent non-
executive Directors meet the independence guidelines set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and are independent in accordance
with the terms of the guidelines during the Year.

Code of Conduct for Securities Transactions by Directors
The Company has adopted the Model Code for
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)

Securities

contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of
conduct for dealing in securities of the Company by the Directors.

Specific enquiries have been made with all Directors, and all
Directors confirmed in writing that they have complied with the
required standard set out in the Model Code regarding their
securities transactions for the Year.

Induction and Continuous Professional Trainings of
Directors

Each of the appointed Directors, has
comprehensive and tailored induction and continuous professional
training to ensure appropriate understanding of the business and
operations of the Company and full awareness of director’s
responsibilities and obligations under the requirements of the Listing
Rules and relevant statutory obligations.

received formal,

The Directors have also been informed of the requirement under
Code Provision C.1.4 of the CG Code
professional development.

regarding continuous
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During the Year, there was one in-house training conducted
covering the topics of connected transactions, directors’ duties and
responsibilities, corporate governance practices, independence of
independent non-executive directors, disclosure requirements under
the Listing Rules and SFO.

All Directors have attended the continuous professional development
training and below are details of all Directors’ attendance on
training during the Year.

RAFE  ARFBET—RAMHFI - A
RBREMERS BEFRBLRBE ©XE
AER  BUIFRTEENBIMEAR LT
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Attendance/Numbers of
in-house seminars

5817 Py BB EE X B R B

Executive Directors: HITESE -
Mr. Zhu Yongjun KBELRA 1
Mr. Pan Yimin EEHESA 1
Mr. Lee Tsi Fun Nicholas THEEE 1
Non-executive Directors: FHEHTESE -
Mr. Sui Guangyi BREEEE 1
Dr. Zhang Lihui SR EE L 1
Dr. Ge Xiaolin BB 1
Independent Non-executive Directors: BYUFPTEE -
Mr. Lo Chun Chiu, Adrian L EE 1
Dr. Tong Ka Lok EREE+ 1
Mr. Choy Wai Shek, Raymond, mH, Jp BRAONE #8255 LFHT 1
BOARD COMMITTEES EEZESE
Audit Committee EZEEE

The audit committee of the Company was established in compliance
with Rules 3.21 and 3.22 of the Listing Rules and with its written
terms of reference. The latest terms of reference of the audit
committee are available on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange.
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The responsibility of the audit committee is to assist the Board in
fulfilling its audit duties through the review and supervision of the
Company’s financial reporting, risk management and internal
control principles and procedures, and to provide advice and
comments to the Board. The members meet regularly with the
external auditor and/or the Company’s senior management for the
review, supervision and discussion of the Company’s financial
reporting, risk management and internal control procedures and
ensure that the management has discharged its duties to have an
effective risk management and internal control systems.

The composition of the audit committee throughout the Year is as
follows:

Dr. Tong Ka Lok (Chairman)
Mr. Lo Chun Chiu, Adrian
Mr. Choy Wai Shek, Raymond, MH, JP

None of the members of the audit committee is a former partner of
the Company’s existing auditing firm. Dr. Tong Ka Lok, who has
appropriate professional qualifications and experience in accounting
matters, was appointed as the chairman of the audit committee.

During the Year, the audit committee held 3 meetings. Details of
the attendance of the members of the audit committee in the said
meeting are set out under the sub-heading “Directors’ Attendance
at Board/Board Committee/General Meetings” above.

The summary of work of the audit committee during the Year is as
follows:

o met with the external auditors, reviewed and made
recommendations for the Board’s approval on the annual and
interim reports of the Company;

o reviewed and approved audit fee;

o recommended the re-appointment of BDO Limited as auditor,
and approval the remuneration and terms of engagement;
and

. reviewed the effectiveness of the Company’s risk management

and internal control systems including the internal audit
function.
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Remuneration Committee

The Board established the remuneration committee on 26 August
2014 with written terms of reference in compliance with the
relevant CG Code. The latest written terms of reference of the
remuneration committee are available on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.
The remuneration committee is responsible for, inter alia,
formulating and making recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s emolument policy and on the establishment of a formal
and transparent procedure for developing such policy. The Board
expects the independent

judgment and ensures that executive Directors do not participate in

remuneration committee to exercise

the determination of their own remuneration.

The composition of the remuneration committee throughout the
Year is as follows:

Mr. Choy Wai Shek, Raymond, mH, Jp (Chairman)
Dr. Tong Ka Lok

Mr. Lo Chun Chiu, Adrian

Mr. Lee Tsi Fun Nicholas

During the Year, the remuneration committee held 1 meeting.
Details of the attendance of the members of the remuneration
committee in the said meeting are set out under the sub-heading
“Directors’ Attendance at Board/Board Committee/General
Meetings” above.

The summary of work of the remuneration committee during the
Year is as follows:

o reviewed and recommended to the Board on the Group’s
remuneration policy and strategy;

o reviewed and recommended to the Board on the remuneration
packages of the executive Directors, non-executive Directors,
independent non-executive Directors and senior management
during the Year; and

o assessed performance of executive directors and approving the
terms of executive directors’ service contract.
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Nomination Committee

The Board established the nomination committee on 26 August
2014 with written terms of reference in compliance with the
relevant CG Code. The latest written terms of reference of the
nomination committee are available on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

The primary duties of the nomination committee include reviewing
the structure, size and composition of the Board, identifying
individuals suitably qualified to become Directors, assessing the
independence of independent non- executive Directors and making
recommendations to the Board on appointment and re-appointment

of Directors.

The composition of the nomination committee throughout the Year
is as follows:

Mr. Lo Chun Chiu, Adrian (Chairman)
Mr. Choy Wai Shek, Raymond, MH, JP
Dr. Tong Ka Lok
Mr. Zhu Yongjun

During the Year, the nomination committee held 1 meeting. Details
of the attendance of the members of the nomination committee in
the said meeting are set out under the sub-heading “Directors’
Attendance at Board/Board Committee/General Meetings” above.

The summary of work of the nomination committee during the Year
is as follows:

J reviewed the existing Board's structure, size and composition;
o reviewed and made recommendation on the appointment on
non-executive Directors;

J reviewed and assessed the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors; and

o made recommendation on the retiring Directors at the AGM
of the Company.
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Board diversity policy

The Company recognises the benefits of having diversity in the
composition of the Board and adopted its own board diversity
policy on 26 August 2014.

The Company noted that people from different backgrounds and
with different professional and life experience are likely to approach
problems in different ways and accordingly, members of the Board
with diverse backgrounds will bring different concerns and questions
to the table, and allow the Board to consider a wider range of
options and solutions when deciding on corporate issues and
formulating policies for the Group. In determining the Board’s
composition and selection of candidates to the Board, factors
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, skills,
knowledge and length of service will be considered. All Board
appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be
considered against the selection criteria, having regard for the
benefits of diversity on the Board, the business model and specific

ethnicity, professional experience, industry

needs of the Group. The ultimate decision will be based on merit
and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the
Board.

The Board has yet to consist at least 1 female member where the
Company considered to further enhance such gender diversity by
appointing a female board member on or before 31 December
2024. Other than that, Board
composition (as well as relevant background and expertise) and the
business needs of the Group, it is of the view that gender diversity
of the Board is still achieved at this stage.
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The Company will continuously seek to enhance the effectiveness of
the Board by maintaining the highest standards of corporate
governance and recognising and embracing the benefits of diversity
in the boardroom. Board appointments will continue to be made on
a merit basis and candidates will be considered against objective
criteria, with due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.
The ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that
the selected candidates will bring to the Board. The following chart
shows the diversity profile of the Board as at 31 March 2023:
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On the other hand, while the Group has always been committed to
providing open and equal employment opportunities and platforms
and regards the ability and qualifications of candidates as the most
critical assessment elements in the recruitment process. We also
ensure that our human resources management structure, such as
remuneration training opportunities and employment
prospects, are not affected by gender to achieve gender equality.
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Since (i) the main businesses of the Group including foundation,
and kitchen waste treatment, etc., the professionals who take
relevant courses are mainly male, and (ii) the front-line technical
staff of the project companies require high manual labour and shift
work, as a result, the applicants are mainly male, rather than the
Group deliberately not hiring female front-line technical staff. Details
of the Group’s gender ratio are set out in the Company’s ESG
report for the Year published on the websites of the Company and
the Stock Exchange.

The nomination committee has monitored the implementation of the
board diversity policy since its adoption, and also reviewed it to
ensure its effectiveness and concluded that no revision to the policy
is required at the last nomination committee meeting held.

Nomination Policy

The Nomination Committee was responsible to maintain the
nomination policy of the Company (the “Nomination Policy”) and
review the same regularly. The purpose of the Nomination Policy is
to identify candidates who are suitable to become a member of the
Board and to make recommendations to the Board on the selection
of candidates nominated for directorships. The Board shall be
composed of members with balance of skills, experience and
diversity of perspectives appropriate to accomplish the Group's
business development, strategies, operation, challenges and
opportunities. The core criteria for selection include gender, age,
cultural and education background, professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and industry and regional experience, number of
directorship in other listed/public companies and in case of
independent non-executive Directors, the number of years they have
already served. According to the nomination procedure, the
Nomination Committee is responsible for identifying potential new
Directors and recommends to the Board for decision. The
appointment shall be subject to the approval by the Board in
accordance with the Company’s Memorandum and Articles of
Association, the Main Board Listing Rules and the Nomination
Policy.

Corporate Governance Function

During the Year, the Board has reviewed the corporate governance
practices of the Company with reference to Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules. The summary of their work during the Year is as
follows:

o developed and reviewed the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations;
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o reviewed and monitored the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management
of the Group;

o reviewed and monitored the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

o developed, reviewed and monitored the code of conduct and
compliance manual applicable to employees of the Group and
the Directors; and

o reviewed the Company’'s compliance with CG Code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Emolument Policy

The remuneration policy of the Group is to ensure the fairness and
competitiveness of total remuneration. The emoluments of executive
Directors are determined based on the skills, knowledge, individual
performance as well as contributions, the scope of responsibility and
accountability of such Directors, taking into consideration the
Company’s performance and prevailing market conditions. The
remuneration policy of non-executive Director and independent non-
executive Directors is to ensure that they are adequately
compensated for their efforts and time dedicated to the Company’s
affairs including their participation in respective Board committees.
Their emoluments are determined with reference to their skills,
experience, knowledge, duties and market trends.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Reporting

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the preparation of the
Financial Statements for the Year which give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group in accordance with the statutory
requirements and accounting standards and other financial
disclosure requirement under the Listing Rules. The financial results
of the Group are announced in a timely manner in accordance with
statutory and/or regulatory requirements.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement by auditor about their reporting responsibilities is set
out in the independent auditor’s report on pages 81 to 87.
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External Auditor's Remuneration

During the Year, the Group engaged BDO Limited as external
auditor of the Company. The fee in respect of audit services and
non-audit services provided by BDO Limited and its affiliates for the
Year were as follows:

4§ & 42 S5 B i B

RAFE  RNEBZEEBLEERGTA
EBMARATBARRINEZEER - BE
VEERSHMESEMERARREHE
REIRAFERHEBZRE RIEFZRE
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Nature of services Amount
PR %5 14 B2 k2]
HK$'000

FHET

Audit services in relation to annual results EHE2FEENELZRS 1,738
Review of interim results ERPEEE —
Non-audit services IEEZRE 130

The audit committee has expressed its views to the Board that the BEZZEE@REZE R~ ERAKRQFMN

level of fees paid/payable to the Company to the Company's
external auditor for annual audit services is reasonable. There has
been no major disagreement between the auditor and the
management of the Company during the Year.

Non-audit services represent the agreed-upon procedures on the
Company's interim financial information for the six-month ended 30
September 2022.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL SYSTEMS

The Board has overall
internal control systems of the Group and

responsibility for the effective risk
management and
committed to the maintenance of good corporate governance,
practices and procedures of the Group. The Board also admitted the
effectiveness of the existing risk management and internal control
systems during the Year. However, such systems are designed to
manage rather than eliminate risk of failure to achieve business
objective, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss. Nevertheless, the
management is authorised to engage an external professional
service provider to conduct review on the Group's policies and
make recommendations for the improvement and strengthening of
the risk management and internal control systems during the Year.
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Effectiveness

The Board has overall responsibility for evaluating, determining,
establishing and maintaining an effective risk management and
internal control systems of the Group and for reviewing its
effectiveness to safeguard the Company’s assets and the
shareholders’ interests. During the Year, the Board and the audit
committee of the Company have conducted a review on the
effectiveness of Group’s risk management and internal control
systems.

The Board has overseen the management in the design,
implementation and monitoring of the risk management and
internal control systems, and has reviewed the effectiveness on the
Group's certain policies during the Year.

The Board identified and evaluated the risks and analysed the core
risks within the Group to mitigate related risks arising from the
existing operations after evaluating its risk management and internal
controls systems.

The key risk management and internal control procedures of the
Company are as follows:

1. determine the scope, identify the risks and compile a list of
such risks;

2. evaluate and prioritise the risks based on the possible financial
loss and impact on operating efficiency, sustainability and
reputation;

3. identify the risk control measures against major risks, conduct
internal control assessments of the design and

implementation of such measures, and formulate measures to
improve any defect;

4. review and evaluate the risk management and internal control
systems on an ongoing basis and ensure the constant
improvement of the risk management system; and

5z report the findings to the audit committee and the board of
directors.

The Board confirmed that the Group’s risk management and
internal controls systems were acceptable and there was no material
non-compliance or failures issues located but various areas for
improvement have been identified during the Year. Certain remedial
measures have been and will be taken to strengthen the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group.

2023 EH AlxEBE(ER)ERAT /5

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

R HE
=

PEERRE

HRAAKBENE BEE 2 h#E

FEMONEREERAFEEHE  AR®

A H KB

ARIE AR A& B M B IR A & A

Wﬁ@%E Fﬁif i%A&$ Gk

%%ﬁﬂﬁirﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ

BN A AR

CBiRE
B BEREHEN T - b5

$$I S TR AR

EZefBTHERREE R AN
B Rt mERE oMAKBERERE

EBEENZLER

ZANUN
T

—

EEEmR

R AR A B R

G - S A= (S 2y =y

B A
s

BE

BE - HEARNERER

RIS A R B EAE T
B REBHTE LA

2
PR

WAt E EERRA R ETEE -
HZERENRGTRERETRNIE
PREEAE - I E HE e A IE (E AT R B

Rl MY b E e B I N AR BL
- AR B B IR ST B O
K

AEZZEERETEERER -

AEEAFENRRBREERA

%%E%ETH&E WEERBEBANERNK

KHMEH"

HFESETHEZR -AKEE

KA G RERE TAHER 3 - LA EE R
EBRABEESE -



76

NEW CONCEPTS HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
DEEARES

The Group reviewed the effectiveness of its risk management and
internal control systems at least annually. The Board and the audit
committee also considered that the key areas of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems, including the adequacy
of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Company’'s accounting are
reasonably conducted and implemented.

ANTI-CORRUPTION AND WHISTLE-BLOWING
POLICY

The Group has established (i) policy and measures that promote and
support anti-corruption and bribery laws and regulations; and (i)
whistle-blowing policy and measures for those who deal with the
Group, such as its employees, customers and suppliers to raise
concerns, in confidence and anonymity, with the audit committee
about possible improprieties in any matter related to the Group. For
further details of the Group’s anti-corruption and bribery policy, and
whistleblowing policy and/or measures, please refer to the
Company’s ESG report for the Year published on the websites of
the Company and the Stock Exchange.

INSIDE INFORMATION

The Group has adopted and implemented its own disclosure policy
aiming to provide a general guide to the directors and senior
management of the Company in handling of confidential
information and/or monitoring of information disclosure pursuant to
applicable laws and regulations in compliance with the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO").

The disclosure policy provides the procedures and internal controls
for the handling and dissemination of inside information by
publication of the announcement to the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company on a timely basis to enable the public,
namely shareholders, institutional investors, potential investors and
other stakeholders of the Company to access the latest information
of the Group, unless such information fall within the safe harbours
under the SFO.

Briefing and training on the implementation of the disclosure policy
have been provided to Directors and senior management of the
Group.

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

While at all times the Board retains full responsibility for guiding
and monitoring the Company in discharging its duties, certain
responsibilities are delegated to various board committees which
have been established by the Board to deal with different aspects of
the Company’s affairs. Unless otherwise specified in their respective
written terms of reference as approved by the Board, these board
committees are governed by the Company’s articles of association
as well as the Board’s policies and practices (in so far as the same
are not in conflict with the provisions contained in the articles of
association).
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With the establishment of the audit committee, remuneration
committee and nomination committee, the
executive Directors will be able to effectively devote their time to

perform the duties required by the respective board committees.

independent non-

The Board has also delegated the responsibility of implementing its
strategies and the day-to-day operation to the management of the
Company under the leadership of the chief executive officer and
executive Directors. Clear guidance has been made as to the
matters that should be reserved to the Board for its decision which
include matters on, inter alia, capital, finance and financial
reporting, internal controls, communication with shareholders, Board
membership, delegation of authority and corporate governance.

COMPANY SECRETARY

During the Year, Mr. Lee Tsi Fun Nicholas undertook over 15 hours’
professional training to update his skill and knowledge in
compliance with the CG Code.

CHANGES IN CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Year, there has been no changes in the constitutional
documents of the Company.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Way by Which Shareholders Can Convene
Extraordinary General Meeting (“"EGM")/Put Forward
Proposal

According to Article 64 of the Articles of Association of the
Company, extraordinary general meetings shall also be convened on
the requisition of one or more shareholders of the Company
holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition, not less than one-
tenth of the paid up capital of the Company having the right of
voting at general meetings. Such requisition shall be made in
writing to the Board or the company secretary for the purpose of
requiring an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board
for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition.
Such meeting shall be held within 2 months after the deposit of
such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit, the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of
the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.
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Article 113 of the Articles of Association provides that no person,
other than a retiring Director shall, unless recommended by the
Board for election, be eligible for election to the office of Director
at any general meeting, unless notice in writing of the intention to
propose that person for election as a Director and notice in writing
by that person of his willingness to be elected shall have been
lodged at the head office or at the registration office. The period
for lodgment of the notices required under this Article will
commence no earlier than the day after the despatch of the notice
of the general meeting appointed for such election and end no later
than 7 days prior to the date of such general meeting and the
minimum length of the period during which such notices to the
Company may be given will be at least 7 days.

Accordingly, if a shareholder of the Company wishes to propose a
person other than a retiring Director for election as a Director at the
Company’s general meeting, he/she should attend the following:

. Prepare a notice in writing of his/her intention to propose a
person for election as a Director.

o The person proposed for election as a Director shall also
prepare a notice in writing of his/her willingness to be
elected.

J Such notices shall be lodged at the head office of the Company
at Office B, 3/F, Kingston International Centre, 19 Wang Chiu
Road, Kowloon Bay, Hong Kong or at the address of Tricor
Investor Services Limited, the Hong Kong branch share
registrar and transfer office of the Company at 17th Floor,
Far East Finance Centre, No. 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong.

o The period for lodgment of such notices will commence no
earlier than the day after the despatch of the notice of the
general meeting appointed for such election and end no later
than 7 days prior to the date of such general meeting and
the minimum length of the period during which such notices
to the Company may be given will be at least 7 days.

The relevant procedures are set out in the circular to the

shareholders which is sent together with this annual report and the

Company’s website at http://www.primeworld-china.com.
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The Procedures for Sending Enquiries to the Board
Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns in writing to
the Board by addressing them to the Company at our head office in
Hong Kong at Office B, 3/F, Kingston International Centre, 19 Wang
Chiu Road, Kowloon Bay, Hong Kong or by email through the
Company’s website at http://www.primeworld-china.com.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTORS

The Company endeavors to maintain effective communications with
the shareholders and potential investors of the Company.

Save as mentioned under the sub-heading “The Procedures for
Sending Enquiries to the Board” above, in order to provide more
relevant information to our shareholders, the Company has
published all corporate information about the Group on its website
of the

Company to communicate with the shareholders and potential

at http://www.primeworld-china.com. It is a channel
investors with our latest corporate development. All our corporate
communications, such as statutory announcement, circular, financial
reports are available on the website for easy access by the
shareholders and potential investors. In addition, the Company
meets its shareholders at the annual general meeting so as to
promote the development of the Company through mutual and
efficient communications.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company aims to strike a balance between maintaining
sufficient capital to develop and operate the business of the Group
and rewarding the shareholders of the Company. According to the
dividend policy of the Company, in deciding whether to propose a
dividend and in determining the dividend amount, the Company
shall take into account, inter alia, the following factors:

—  the Group’s operating results, actual and expected financial
performance;

— retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company
and each of the members of the Group;

—  the level of the Group’s debts to equity ratio, return on equity
and the relevant financial covenants;
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—  the Group’s expected working capital requirements, capital
expenditure requirements and future expansion plans;

—  the Group’s liquidity position;

— general economic conditions, business cycle of the Group’s
business and other internal and external factors that may
have an impact on the business or financial performance and
position of the Group; and

— any other factors that the Company may deem appropriate and
relevant.

Such declaration and payment of the dividend by the Company is
also subject to any restrictions under the Companies Laws of the
Cayman Islands, any applicable laws, rule and regulations and the
Articles of Association of the Company. Any declaration and
payment of future dividend under the Dividend Policy are subject to
the Board’s determination that the same would be in best interests
of the Group and the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The forthcoming AGM of the Company is scheduled to be held on
15 August 2023. At the AGM, the chairman of the Board as well as
chairmen of the nomination committee, remuneration committee
and audit committee or, in their absence, other members of the
respective committees shall attend to answer questions from
shareholders at the annual general meeting. The representatives of
the external auditor shall also present and available to answer

questions at the meeting.
The notice of AGM and the necessary information on issues to be
considered in the AGM will be set out in the circular to be

dispatched to the shareholders of the Company in due course.

Hong Kong, 21 June 2023
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IBDO

EEE - +852 2218 8288
{&H : +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF NEW CONCEPTS HOLDINGS
LIMITED
(incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of New
Concepts Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
March 2023, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, and
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the

“Group”) set out on pages 88 to 235, which

consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
31 March 2023, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s “Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
in the context of our audit of the

were of most significance

matters were addressed
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Refer to notes 16(a) of the consolidated financial statements and
accounting policies on note 4(g).

As at 31 March 2023, the aggregate carrying amount of operating
concessions after impairment was HK$246,519,000 which
represented approximately 24% of the Group’s total assets. An
impairment assessment is performed by management when there are
indicators of impairment by comparing the carrying amount and the
recoverable amount of the asset or the cash generating unit to
which the asset relates.

The impairment assessment is significant to our audit due to (i) the
significance of the carrying amounts; and (ii) the significant
judgements and estimates involved in determining the recoverable
amounts of the cash-generating units to which the operating
including, expected

concessions are allocated, amongst others,

future cash flows and discount rates.
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Our response:

Our audit procedures in relation to impairment assessment of
operating concessions included:

o Discussing with management about the technological, market,
economic and legal environment and economic performance
of each cash-generating unit to assess management’s
identification of impairment indicators;

o Assessing the key assumptions used in management’s cash flow

projections for impairment assessment of operating
concessions including, amongst others, expected future cash
flows and discount with the assistance from our

valuation specialists; and

rates,

o Assessing the adequacy of disclosures in connection with the
impairment assessment of operating concessions.

Refer to notes 16(b), 16(c), 19(a), 20, 21, 22 of the consolidated
financial statements and accounting policies on note 4(g), 4(i)(ii).

As at 31 March 2023, the aggregate carrying amount of trade and
retention receivables, deposits and other receivables, contract assets,
loan receivables and receivables and contract assets under service
concession arrangements was HK$446,883,000 which represented
approximately 43% of the Group’s total assets. An impairment
assessment is performed by management at the end of the
reporting period.

The impairment assessment is significant to our audit due to the
significance of the carrying amounts as a whole and significant
estimates involved in determining the future cash flows from such
deposits and receivables based on, among others, the ageing of
these deposit and receivable balances, customers’ and debtors’
creditworthiness, past repayment history and historical write-off
experience.

2023%F F 3}

L
B

B 7 1z BRI

off

B EEITE

BMEEFr N REFGETHER
BEFEE:

. HERBMmERNEELEUAR
iM% KERERRBEARKEE
KRB ARHEERERRWRETR

. ERMANBEERGE T - FEEE
B LSFrEETRERGMIER
EREBAEMNIEZRR 2 (K
TEE)FEHRRESRERMEE
§53

o A fE A B AR S AT R RUE AT b RO B BR
FEHELARA -

R M 4R A B R sk & i sE16(b) ~ 16(c)
19(a) * 20 ~ 21~ 2234 & M 5E4(g) ~ 4G)i) e
FTERER o

R2023F3A31H * & F fE W FIE & E WR
B REREMEKRE AHNEE &
KWEFURETCERELHERBERERE
4 & E 1 BR T 42 %8 5446,883,0007 T
I BEEEERENLIEY - EEBRHRE
HAR TR E TG -

BMEFHEHRMANERTEEEATE R
AERNGEBBBNEEN  URER
(B el ZEEe REERBALHRIKE
R FEPREBANEE BEERLER
ESLMEERBEEZTES RERFRIAN
ARRERERFREBARMEE -



ANNUAL REPORT 2023

B

% 37 Az BAM

Iff

Our response:

Our audit procedures in relation to impairment assessment of trade
and retention receivables, deposits and other receivables, contract
assets, loan receivables and receivables and contract assets under
service concession arrangements included:

o Assessing the methodologies and inputs adopted by the
management of the Group in estimating the expected credit
loss (“ECL") of trade and retention receivables, deposits and
other receivables, contract assets,
receivables and contract assets under service concession

loan receivables and

arrangements;

o Considering whether any debtor or group of debtors was
experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments; and

o Reviewing subsequent settlements of the trade and retention

receivables, deposits and other receivables, contract assets,
loan receivables and receivables and contract assets under
service concession arrangements.

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s
report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

annual

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing

to report in this regard.
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The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
misstatement,

financial statements that are free from material

whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either liguidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

intend to

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process. The audit committee of the Company
("Audit Committee”) in discharging their
responsibility in this regard.

assists the directors

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with the terms of our
engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the

contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise

professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control.

evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’'s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.
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o obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

have complied with relevant ethical requirements

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public
communication.

interest benefits of such

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Lee Ka Leung, Daniel
Practising Certificate No. P01220

Hong Kong, 21 June 2023
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
GEBERER

For the year ended 31 March 2023 & Z2023F3H31H I F/&

2022
Notes HK$'000
M 5E F&ET
Revenue N 7 545,189 654,851
Cost of sales 8§ B B AN (491,625) (572,052)
Gross profit ESAl| 53,564 82,799
Other income and gains, net  E i Ug A & Uz 5 28 7 38,163 65,329
Provision on expected credit £ gt & & 4 & E H) 78 55
loss on financial and contract 1= & E5 48 B &
assets (3,935) (3,026)
Administrative expenses 1THR X (91,677) (95,029)
Finance costs B 75 B 7R 9 (10,821) (20,904)
(Loss)/profit before tax BELAT (B51B) /i (14,706) 29,169
Income tax Frig i 12 (4,016) (12,084)
(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE ER () iR
YEAR (18,722) 17,085
(Loss)/profit for the year UTATREIEER
attributable to: (B518) i F
Owner of the Company ZIN/NEETEZ =N (20,797) 5,504
Non-controlling interests eI R HE = 2,075 11,581
(18,722) 17,085
HK centsi# HK cents i fill
(Loss)/earnings per share EATHE ANEM
attributable to the Sk (BE) B :
owners of the Company: 113
Basic R (1.60) 0.53
Diluted i (1.60) 0.53




20236 FHK AXEE(ER)BRATA

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

SeEEZHEW AR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 & 2202343318 1F F /&

2022
HK$'000
FA&T
(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR F£R(EE) BT (18,722) 17,085
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (EXPENSE)/ Hivz2E(FAX)
INCOME W 25
Other comprehensive income that may be RERBABTEF S
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent EERNAMEE
periods: Wz
Exchange differences on translation of MEINBEEREE S
foreign operations bk} (16,536) 1,085
Recycle of exchange difference upon B SNE T 1R
disposal of foreign operations B 5, 2 2E A IR — 4,425
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE (EXPENSE)/ ERE2ZEEX)
INCOME FOR THE YEAR W25 48 %8 (35,258) 22,595
Attributable to: HER
Owners of the Company VIN/NETEZ Z =N (33,480) 9,378
Non-controlling interests 1R e = (1,778) 13,217

(35,258) 22,595
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NEW CONCEPTS HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e B IR &

As at 31 March 2023 202343 H31H

2022
Notes HK$'000
B 7 FBT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment W3 IR RE 14 62,824 70,443
Investment properties wEYE 15 22,167 —
Operating concessions A BT 16(a) 246,519 201,872
Other intangible assets EMmEEEE 17 1,288 1,971
Receivables under service concession B & &% & ¥ 22 HE FE UL
arrangements RIA 16(b) 53,221 59,448
Contract assets under service HrgERZHEen
concession arrangements B E 16(c) 42,466 47,110
Loan receivables i =& 22 21,945 —
Prepayments, deposits and other TARRIE e kHEAM
receivables & Y2 R IE 21 198,170 31,716
Retention receivables ERRE S 20 10,499 4,213
Total non-current assets FERBEELE 659,099 416,773
CURRENT ASSETS mENEE
Inventories 55 18 8,067 3,105
Contract assets EHNEE 19(a) 35,748 16,021
Trade and retention receivables H 5 & WK IE K FE W AR
B& 20 92,431 109,745
Receivables under service concession 5 #F 4% & 1 22 HE E IR
arrangements KIE 16(b) 10,502 11,423
Prepayments, deposits and other TR RIE - e R HEM
receivables FE U K1 21 72,792 138,079
Loan receivables &I & R 22 19,817 —
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkBEEEFED 24 134,540 117,458
Total current assets MEBEEBE 373,897 395,831




20236 FHK AXEE(ER)BRATA

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AR B BRI R

As at 31 March 2023 R20234F3H31H

2022
Notes HK$'000
B % FHE T
CURRENT LIABILITIES i ENE fF
Contract liabilities aHEE 19(b) 716 2,480
Trade and retention payables 2 5 &~ 58 R FE TR
BE 25 118,506 156,863
Other payables and accruals E b FE ST FRIE K B ET
- 26 86,848 100,261
Lease liabilities HEaE 34 5,058 3,188
Interest-bearing other borrowings FEEMEER 27 65,533 73,720
Convertible bond ABRES 39 2,376 —
Tax payables JE < ¢ 18 1,173 5,754
Total current liabilities mE B EERE 280,210 342,266
NET CURRENT ASSETS MENEEEE 93,687 53,565
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EERERTHER
LIABILITIES 752,786 470,338
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBERE
Amounts due to related parties & {5 BA B 75 3R0B 23 190,222 200,222
Convertible bond A % (& 5 39 — 2,376
Retention payables ETIRE & 25 4,412 4,163
Interest-bearing other borrowings FT 8 E i 18 5K 27 101,457 —
Provision B 29 6,352 6,901
Bonds &% 28 20,000 —
Lease liabilities HEBRE 34 8,551 1,471
Deferred tax liabilities BRI I B E 30 15,788 15,760
Total non-current liabilities ERBBEERE 346,782 230,893

Net assets BEEFE 406,004 239,445
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NEW CONCEPTS HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
A BB R

As at 31 March 2023 R20234F3H31H

2022
Notes HK$'000
Bt 52 T T
EQUITY Wi
Equity attributable to owners of the SFERARAHEE AH
Company 1 2=
Share capital [N 31 150,719 95,402
Reserves Gk 33 208,658 95,638
359,377 191,040
Non-controlling interests FEFE R HE 2R 46,627 48,405
Total equity AR 406,004 239,445
Zhu Yongjun Pan Yimin
KREBEE EHR
Chairman and Executive Director Executive Director

IRRWTES HITES



203FFH AXEEER)ERAT

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mEEREHR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 & 202343318 1F F /&

Attributable to owners of the Company

BERARAEAA
Share Conversion Exchange Non-
Share premium Share option option fluctuation  Accumulated controlling
capital account  Merger reserve reserve reserve reserve [osses Total interests  Total equity
RE  ROEEE  AHRE BRERE HAREE EXRIEE  2iEE @i kEREE  BEEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL TEL TEL T T TEL FEL TEL TEL T
(note 33) (note 33) (note 33) (note 33)
(RiE33) (H333) (Hit33) (R3£33)
At 1 April 2021 R202154A18 69,359 524,672 14,000 3,765 = 2,890 (514,209) 100477 35,188 135,665
Profit for the year FRET - - - - - - 5,504 5,504 11,581 17,085
Other comprehensive income for the year: FREMZENE
Exchange differences arising from translation RENEEBHELNENZE - - - - - (551) - (551) 1636 1,085
Recycle of exchange differences upon disposal of foreign £ ENEEKERRES 28

operations - - - — — 4425 - 4425 - 4425
Total comprehensive income for the year FR2ENELE — - - - - 3874 5,504 9378 13217 22,59
Issue of equity-settled share options (note 32) BB REE R RE (332) - - - 7119 - - - 7119 - 719
Issue of shares (note 31) BRG (Hi31) 18947 35,047 - - - - — 53,994 = 53,994
Forfeit of share options (note 32) RRHRE (H32) - - - (401) - - 401 - - -
Lapse of share options (note 32) BREXN (W) - - - (3,765) - = 3765 = = =
Issue of shares upon exercise of shares options TEBREE SR (H333)

(note 33) 624 3137 — (1,139) - - - 2622 — 2,622
Issue of convertible bond (note 39) B AARES (H339) - - - = 4124 - - 414 - 414
Shares issued upon exercise of debt conversion rights 17 BB BREEE IR (G

(note 39) (Hi#39) 6472 10,354 - - (3,500) - - 13326 = 13326
At 31 March 2022 R2022%E3A318 95,402 573210 14,000 5579 624 6,764 (504,539) 191,040 48405 239,445
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NEW CONCEPTS HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

A ED BB R

For the year ended 31 March 2023 & 2202343318 1 F &

Attributable to owners of the Company

BERFATRAN
Share Conversion Exchange Non-
Share premium Merger  Share option option  fluctuation  Accumulated controlling
capital account reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total interests  Total equity
k% RBERE AHEE  BRERE BRERE EXRDRG 2itER @it FnRES RE0E
HKS000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET T FER FET FET FET FET
(note 33) (note 33) (note 33) (note 33)
(5t33) (WE33)  (Wass)  (Was3)
At 1 April 2022 H202254A1R 95,402 573,210 14,000 5519 624 6,764 (504,539) 191,040 48,405 239,445
Loss for the year ERER - - - - - - (20,797) (20,797) 2075 (18,722)
Other comprehensive income for the year: FREHRENE:
Exchange differences arising from translation BENAERHELNES 2E - - - - - (12,683) - (12,683) (3853) (16,536)
Total comprehensive income for the year FRREREEE - - - - - (12,683) (20,797) (33.480) (1.778) (35,258)
Issue of equity-settled share options (note 32) BONEREENERE (M) - - - 2302 - - - 2302 - 2302
Issue of shares (note 31) BRG (W31 55,017 143,38 - - - - - 198,255 - 198,255
Lapse of share options (note 32(a)) BREX R (HiE320) - - - (266) - - 266 - - -
Issue of shares upon exercise of shares options AEEREREIRG
(note 32(a) (F3320a)) 300 1,507 - (547) - - - 1,260 - 1,260
At 31 March 2023 2023537318 150,719 717,955 14,000 7,068 624 (5,919) (525,070) 359,377 46,621 406,004




20236 FHK AXEE(ER)BRATA

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

SEHRERER

For the year ended 31 March 2023 & Z20234F3H31H i F/&

2022
Notes HK$'000
Bt = T T
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REEZFZTHMIEL
ACTIVITIES nE
(Loss)/profit before tax BRBLAT(EE) % F (14,706) 29,169
Adjustments for: BATFIBEL FAE
Finance costs B 75 B AR 9 10,821 20,904
Interest income FLEMA 7 (503) (292)
Overprovision of interest and SRR E R A
other changes 28 7(ii) — (5,340)
Loss on disposal of items of HEWE  HERH
property, plant and equipment #1588 /518 8 — 150
Provision of major overhaul NG 29 730 6,564
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries o6 B BB A ) A U A 7 — (13,547)
Depreciation e 8 20,936 24,441
Amortisation of operating R AT RE AR
concessions 8/16(a) 5,595 4,006
Amortisation of other intangible H b & B i
assets 8 533 552
Provision on expected credit loss TRRENEENTE
(“ECL") on financial and =8k ([FEH
contract assets SEEBDRE 3,935 3,026
Reversal of impairment of AR AT E R
operating concession 7/16(a) — (24,083)
Equity-settled share option LARE 25 45 B 1) BB AR 4
expense 2 32 2,302 7,119
Operating cash flows before LEESFBAINLE
movements in working capital REmeE 29,643 52,669
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NEW CONCEPTS HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2023

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

meReRER

For the year ended 31 March 2023 & £20234%3/31H 1 F &

2022
Notes HK$'000
B £ F&T
Increase in inventories 7880 (4,962) (2,024)
Increase in contract assets B HEELN (20,049) (4,047)
Decrease in trade and retention B 5 e U kI8 K fE UL IR
receivables B 11,599 27,886
Decrease in prepayments, deposits BRRIE - e R EA
and other receivables & U 3k IE R A 33,069 36,341
Decrease/(increase) in receivables F T AL 2 HE R R
under service concession B A, (38 hn)
arrangements 6,487 (2,567)
Decrease/(increase) in contract assets 4S5 EHELTH &
under service concession HEERD(EM)
arrangement 3,921 (48,503)
Increase in contract liabilities ABHEELM (1,764) (4,773)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and B 5N RIE R R
retention payables Be Od) HEm (38,108) 44,772
(Decrease)/increase in other payables £ th [ (< 218 & f& 51
and accruals B CRD) (19,157) 24,318
Utilisation of provision ) G (690) (5,182)
Cash (used in)/generated from K& () EEW
operations Re (11) 118,890
Taxes paid B & AT I (7,609) (1,343)
Net cash (used in)/from ESES) (FTA) /s
operating activities K 3R & F & (7,620) 117,547
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REBREEHHRE
ACTIVITIES i
Interest received 2 W F B 503 292
Payment for operating concessions A A S R S 3R 16(a) (59,307) (78,800)
Deposit for/purchases of items of M MR RFREEE
property, plant and equipment Re / HEE 14 (75,544) (16,510)
Payments for project cost XA ABEER M
for in Guoyang project 1E B A (5.682) =
Payments for project cost XA EEHIERM
for in Yixing project 18 B KA (88,020) =
Payments for project cost FRNECISENEN
for in Dunhua project I8 B A (9,714) =
Acquisition of investment properties U B 1% & ¥ 2 (22,422) -
Proceeds from disposal of items of ~ HE¥ ¥ - #E KR E
property, plant and equipment H B SRR — 22,284
Proceeds from disposal of HEM B AR TS R IE
subsidiaries 36 39,401 63,989
Increase in loan receivables & UL B FR L N (42,601) —
Net cash used in investing activities & Z /EEFTAME
et (263,386) (8,745)




2023%F F 3}

meEReERER
For the year ended 31 March 2023 &t 220233 H31H 1 F/&

2022
Note HK$'000
B & FAT
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING RERE TSRS
ACTIVITIES i
Proceeds from issue of shares TR DTS RIE 53,994
Proceeds from exercise of share 1710 B8 IR 4 P15 5RIE
options 2,622
Transaction costs attributable to issue 217 B 1) FE 15 2 5 Bk A&
of shares —
Proceeds from issue of convertible BRI MRESFME
bond IE 39 19,826
New bank and other borrowings FIERTRAMEE —
Repayment of bank and other BEBRTRAMEE
borrowings (85,156)
Repayment to capital element of EEHSEAGEMNANE
lease liabilities payments N E 5 (3,472)
Interest element of lease liabilities HEBBENROFE
payments i) (178)
Interest paid B F B (15,136)
Proceeds from bonds B 15 RIE —
Repayment of bonds BEHFENR (25,500)
Increase in lease liabilities HE & FEHE 6,369
Repayment to in amounts due to 1832 B T B Bk 5 5k 1B
related parties (12,260)
Net cash from/(used in) financing MEEBE(FTH)
activities ")38 € F & (58,891)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH HR&RR&ZE MmN
EQUIVALENTS B 49,911
Cash and cash equivalents at FUMEe kRS
beginning of year By 66,686
Effect of foreign exchange rate INEERE T E
changes, net e-cl 861
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT £XRMIRE